
TOWN OF VERNON 
Planning & Zoning Commission (PZC) 

Meeting Notice 
Thursday, November 4, 2021 7:30 PM  

Town Hall--14 Park Place, 3rd Floor Council Chambers 
Vernon, CT 
AGENDA 

1. Call to Order & Roll Call by Roland Klee, Chairman

2. Administrative Actions/Requests

2.1 Amendment/Adoption of Agenda - Additional business to be considered under agenda 
item #7 “Other Business” requires Commission vote 

2.2 Approval of the Minutes from the October 21, 2021. 

3. New Application(s) for receipt, if any:

4. Public Hearing(s) and Action on Applications

4.1 PZ-2021-11 Cannabis Establishments. A text amendment to the Town of Vernon Zoning 
Regulations, various sections, to define, address, and permit certain cannabis 
establishments in select zoning districts. 

4.2 PZ-2021-12 Overnight Parking in the PDZ District. A text amendment to the Town of 
Vernon Zoning Regulations to clarify the intent of Section 4.25.3, related to overnight 
parking in the PDZ district. 

4.3 PZ-2021-14 An Application of Volta Charging, LLC, for a Zoning Regulation Text 
Amendment to permit electric charging station/display kiosks in the Commercial and 
Industrial Zoning Districts. 

4.4 PZ-2021-16 369 Talcottville Rd. An Application of Habitat for Humanity North Central 
Connecticut for four (4) Special Permits in the Special Development Zone-Economic 
Development Zone (Zoning regulation Section 4.20.4.4-wholesale showroom; 4.20.4.7-
professional office; 4.20.4.10-retail sales of products assembled or packaged; 4.20.4.11-
general contracting establishments) at 369 Talcottville Rd. (Tax Map ID: Map 04, Block 
0004, Parcel 0006A). 

5. 8-24 Referrals, If any

6. Other Business/Discussion

6.1 Adoption of the 2021 Plan of Conservation and Development, draft dated October 28, 2021 

7. Adjournment
Roland Klee, Chairman 
Planning & Zoning Commission 



DRAFT MINUTES 



TOWN OF VERNON 
Planning & Zoning Commission (PZC) 
Thursday, October 21, 2021 7:30 PM  

Town Hall 
14 Park Place, 3rd Floor 

Council Chambers 
Vernon, CT 

 
Draft Minutes 

 
1. Call to Order & Roll Call by Roland Klee, Chairman at 7:30 PM 

• Regular members present: Roland Klee, Robin Lockwood, Joseph Miller, Mike Mitchell, 
and Jesse Schoolnik 
• Alternate Member: Carl Bard sitting for Iris Mullan and Mike Baum sitting for Susan 
Reudgen 
• Absent Members: Iris Mullan and Susan Reudgen 
• Staff present: George McGregor, Town Planner and Shaun Gately, EDC 
• Recording secretary: Jill Rocco 

  
2. Administrative Actions/Requests  
 

2.1 Amendment/Adoption of Agenda - Additional business to be considered under agenda 
item #7 “Other Business” requires Commission vote 

 
Robin Lockwood MOVED to ADOPT the agenda as is. Jesse Schoolnik seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
2.2 Approval of the Minutes from the October 7, 2021 PZC Meeting 
 
Robin Lockwood MOVED to APPROVE the minutes from October 7, 2021 with the discussion of 
possibly adding a few more details. Jesse Schoolnik seconded and the motion carried with 
Joseph Miller abstaining. 
 

3. New Application(s) for receipt, if any:  
 
 3.1 PZ-2021-17, 20 Mountain St. An Application of Sal Alhujaji for a Special Permit pursuant 
 to Section 4.15.6 & 3.26 to allow Adaptive Reuse in the Historic District-Planned 
 Neighborhood Development (PND) Zoning District for the purposes of appliance and 

other product storage at 20 Mountain St. (Tax ID: Map 41, Block 0113, Parcel 00015). 
 
Town Planner, George McGregor recommended a hearing date of November 18, 2021. 
 
Jesse Schoolnik MOVED to RECEIVE application PZ 2021-17 an Application of Sal Alhujaji for 
Special Permit at the November 18, 2021 meeting. Joseph Miller seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously and place it on the November 18, 2021 agenda for public hearing. 
 

4. Public Hearing(s) and Action on Applications 
 
 4.1  PZ-2021-13 An Application of Hartford Therapeutic Massage and Wellness Center LLC, 



  for a Special Permit to allow an Independent Massage Therapy Practice and 
  Commercial Education or Recreation (yoga and wellness et al.) in the Commercial 
  Zoning District, pursuant to Section 4.9.4.23 and 4.9.4.5 of the Zoning regulations, at 
  500 Talcottville Rd. (Tax Map 09-015T-0021C). 

 
• Chairman Roland Klee read the rules for Public Hearings. 
• Town Planner George McGregor, read the public notice into record. 
• Legal notice was published in the Journal Inquirer on October 9, 2021 and October 16, 

2021. 
• Town Planner, George McGregor gave details in regards to the application. 
• Tia L. Woods and Tiana B. Allman, 4 Simms Rd, East Hartford addressed the commission 

and gave details in regards to their application. 
• Commission members asked questions. 
• Applicants responded. 
• Chairman Roland Klee opened the Public Hearing at 7:45 PM 
• Rick Konin (Landlord), 44 Caisson Rd, Colchester 06415 spoke in favor off. 
• No one opposed 

 
 Robin Lockwood MOVED to CLOSE the Public Hearing at 7:47 PM, Mike Mitchell seconded and 
 the motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Jesse Schoolnik MOVED that the Planning and Zoning Commission APPROVE PZ-2010-13, a 
 special permit  to allow an Independent Massage Therapy Practice and Commercial Education 
 and/or Recreation (yoga and wellness) at 500 Talcottville Rd. upon a finding that the request is 
 consistent with the special permit requirements of 17.3.   Robin Lockwood seconded and the 
 motion carried unanimously. 
 
 4.2 PZ-2021-15, 38 Oxbow Dr. An application of Robert Coulombe for a Special Permit to 
  allow a Home Business of Major-Type 2, pursuant to Section 4.3.4.8 of the Zoning 
  Regulations, for laser engraving and woodworking at 38 Oxbow Rd. (Tax Map ID: Map, 
  26, Block 065B, Parcel 0010K), in the R-22 zoning district. 
 

• Chairman Roland Klee read the rules for Public Hearings. 
• Town Planner George McGregor, read the public notice into record. 
• Legal notice was published in the Journal Inquirer on October 9, 2021 and October 16, 

2021. 
• Town Planner, George McGregor gave details in regards to the application. 
• Robert Coulombe, applicant, 38 Oxbow Drive, Vernon, CT addressed the commission 

and gave details in regards to the application. 
• Commission members asked questions. 
• Applicant responded. 
• Discussion ensued. 
• George McGregor, Town Planner, clarified “Special Permit to allow a Home Business of 

Major-Type 2”. 
• Chairman Roland Klee opened the Public Hearing 
• No one spoke in favor of or opposed  

  
 Robin Lockwood MOVED to CLOSE the Public Hearing at 7:58 PM.  Joseph Miller seconded and 
 the motion carried unanimously. 
 



 Robin Lockwood MOVED that the Planning and Zoning Commission APPROVE PZ-2010-15, a 
 special  permit for laser engraving and woodworking as a home-based business at 38 Oxbow 
 Rd., based upon a finding that the request is consistent with the home-based business 
 requirements set forth in Section 3.29 and is consistent with the special permit requirements of 
 17.3 subject to  the following conditions: 
 
 1. The business is limited to an area of 750 sq. ft. 
 2. Client activity is limited to: Monday-Friday from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
 3. No more than one customer/client at a time. 
 4. No signage 
 
 Jesse Schoolnik seconded and the motion carried unanimously.  
  
5. 8-24 Referrals, If any 
 
 NONE 
  
6. Other Business/Discussion 
 
 NONE  
 
7. Adjournment  
 
 Robin Lockwood MOVED to ADJOURN at 8:03 PM. Joseph Miller seconded and the motion carried 
 unanimously. 
 
       
         
 
 
 
 
Jill Rocco 
Recording Secretary 
 
 
 



APPLICATION 

1 

 

































STAFF COMMENTS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 

 
OFFICE OF THE 

TOWN PLANNER 
GEORGE K. MCGREGOR, AICP 

 

14 PARK PLACE, VERNON, CT 06066-3291 
Tel:  (860) 870-3640  

E-mail:  gmcgregor@vernon-ct.gov 
 
 

TOWN OF VERNON 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Town of Vernon Planning & Zoning Commission  
    
FROM:  George K. McGregor, AICP 
 
SUBJECT: PZ-2021-11, Cannabis Establishments 
 
DATE:  November 4, 2021 
 
 
Pursuant to SB 1201, the legislation legalizing (de-criminalizing) the use of certain Cannabis 
products, municipalities are authorized to enact zoning regulations or ordinances related to 
cannabis establishments.  
 
Technically, the legislation creates licensing for a number of cannabis related activities (note 
that licensing for Producer and Dispensary already exist in CT).  
 

Cultivator; micro-cultivator; retailer; hybrid retailer; product manufacturer; food and 
beverage manufacturer; product packager; delivery service; transporter. 

 
Although retail locations appear to be the focus of land use discussions in many jurisdictions, 
any amended ordinance may need to address all available licenses. 
 

• Cannabis Establishment: a producer, dispensary, manufacturer, retailer, packager, or 
delivery service for cannabis products 

• Cultivator: a large grower with an establishment greater than 15,000 square feet of 
grow space 

• Micro-Cultivator: a small grower with grow space between 2,000 and 10,000 square 
feet 

• Retailer: a seller of cannabis to all categories of consumers 
• Hybrid Retailer: a seller of both medical marijuana and retail cannabis 
• Food and Beverage Manufacturer: Utilization of cannabis to produce food and 

beverages (edibles, for instance) 
• Delivery Service: delivery of cannabis products 



PZ 2021-11 
Cannabis Establishments 

 

2 
 

 
Draft Language 
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission dedicated two meetings to the discussion of the cannabis 
issue, on August 19 and September 2, 2021. The PZC directed the Town Planner to draft text 
amendment language. In summary: 
 

1. The amendment adds a series of definitions to the Zoning regulations related to 
cannabis and cannabis establishments, both retail and manufacturing/process related. 
 

2. The amendment adds Retail cannabis as a use that is permitted in four distinct zoning 
districts: 
 

• Commercial (C) 
• Planned Commercial (PC) 
• Historic District-Residential Conservation (RC) 
• Historic District-Downtown Business and Development (DBR) 

Note: Under current State Law, number of retail cannabis establishments are capped at a 
maximum of 2 in the Town of Vernon (1 per 25,000 residents). 
 

3. The amendment requires the Special Permit approval process for Retail cannabis, which 
provides for a public hearing and notice of abutting properties within 200 feet of the 
proposed location. 
 

4. The draft amendment establishes 500 feet separating distance between a Retail 
cannabis establishment and a public or parochial school. 
 

5. Manufacturing, cultivating, processing, food and beverage, and other production-
related uses are permitted without additional review (except site plan review) and 
permitted where similar uses are allowed in the Town of Vernon. 

 
Land Use Characteristics of Cannabis Establishments 
 
Land Use impacts and characteristics should be viewed similarly to any use proposed in the 
Town of Vernon. For most Planning & Zoning Commission applications those characteristics 
include (but are not limited to) such elements as traffic, architectural design, noise, odor, 
signage, public safety, economic development, and health. As always, it is the weighing and 
balancing of those characteristics which plays a critical role in decision making. 
 
For Retail Cannabis, this use appears to function quite similarly to other retail establishments 
such as convenience stores, liquor stores, drug stores, and other consumer driven outlets: 



PZ 2021-11 
Cannabis Establishments 

 

3 
 

Customers arrive, park, purchase, depart. Some states have reported traffic issues (center on 
demand) in the first month or so of retail operations, eventually dissipating over time to more 
normal intensity. 
 
For cultivators and micro-cultivators (indoor), the use appears characteristic of manufacturing 
and processing operations. There does not appear to be extra-ordinary land use effects of these 
establishments. There are anecdotal reports about odor, especially related to processing 
operations. Some jurisdictions are conditioning carbon scrubbers or other air filtration devices 
to address this. 
 
Distance and Separation 
 
The Commission spent a portion of its time discussing separation restrictions, much like the 
approach the Zoning Regulations currently take to address liquor stores. Separation from 
schools was the primary focus, similar to how the current ordinance considers the sale of 
alcoholic beverages--which includes a proscribed separating distance (1,000 feet from a public 
institution and 2,000 feet from a high school). Ultimately, the Commission found consensus 
with a lower number to include in the draft amendment—500-foot separation from all public 
and parochial schools. 
 
Draft Motions 
 
MOVED, the Planning & Zoning Commission APPROVE PZ-2021-11, Cannabis establishments, 
subject to the “Draft Technical Framework” dated 9-16-21 (including strikethrough 
comparison), upon a finding that the amendment is consistent with the Plan of Conservation 
and Development and its efforts to support economic development in appropriate commercial 
and industrial locations. 
 
Or 
 
Alternative Motion 
 
 
 
 





APPLICATION 

2 

 











PZ-2021-12 

DRAFT Amendment  

OCTOBER 26, 2021 

 

4.25.3 - Permitted and Prohibited Uses:  

There are no permitted uses or Special Exceptions in this zone. Prohibited uses and activities 
include, but are not limited to, those uses and activities that would pose an unreasonable risk of 
having a significant adverse impact upon the surface water or groundwater resources of the 
Tankerhoosen River Watershed, including but not limited to, the following: Gasoline sales; 
automotive, sales, service, repairs or storage; the garaging or overnight parking of trucks (not 
including trucks or other vehicles associated with, or accessory to, uses such as manufacturing, 
distribution, retail, storage, etc… permitted through the special permit process and deemed to 
have met or exceeded the purpose of the district) or recreation vehicles (RV's); dry cleaning or 
commercial laundry facilities; car wash facilities; film processing or commercial photographic 
processing; junk yards; industrial waste storage or processing facilities; and the manufacture, 
treatment, handling, transportation, disposal or storage of hazardous materials, including bulk 
fuel storage.  

Strikethrough Version  

4.25.3 - Permitted and Prohibited Uses:  

There are no permitted uses or Special Exceptions in this zone. Prohibited uses and activities 
include, but are not limited to, those uses and activities that would pose an unreasonable risk of 
having a significant adverse impact upon the surface water or groundwater resources of the 
Tankerhoosen River Watershed, including but not limited to, the following: Gasoline sales; 
automotive, sales, service, repairs or storage; the garaging or overnight parking of trucks (not 
including trucks or other vehicles associated with, or accessory to, uses such as manufacturing, 
distribution, retail, storage, etc… permitted through the special permit process and deemed to 
have met or exceeded the purpose of the district) or recreation vehicles (RV's); dry cleaning or 
commercial laundry facilities; car wash facilities; film processing or commercial photographic 
processing; junk yards; industrial waste storage or processing facilities; and the manufacture, 
treatment, handling, transportation, disposal or storage of hazardous materials, including bulk 
fuel storage.  

 





STAFF COMMENTS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



OFFICE OF THE 
TOWN PLANNER 

GEORGE K. MCGREGOR, AICP 

14 PARK PLACE, VERNON, CT 06066-3291 
Tel:  (860) 870-3640  

E-mail:  gmcgregor@vernon-ct.gov

TOWN OF VERNON

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town of Vernon Planning & Zoning Commission 

FROM: George K. McGregor, AICP 

SUBJECT: PZ-2021-12 Text Amendment Overnight Parking in the PDZ Zoning District 

DATE: November 4, 2021 

Summary 

Shaun Gately, Town Economic Development Director, requests an amendment to Section 
4.25.3 of the Town Zoning Regulations, in an effort to clarify the permissibility of overnight 
parking in the PDZ Zoning District. 

The current language, as written, suggests an outright prohibition on the “overnight parking of 
trucks” and a number of other uses which might “pose an unreasonable risk” to surface or 
groundwater resources in the area (Section 4.25.3). Other such prohibited uses include gasoline 
sales; auto service, sales, and repair; dry cleaning, film processing; and, hazardous material 
storage. 

The purpose of the district is to “provide for development that can take advantage of the 
transportation infrastructure and contribute to the economic development and fiscal 
improvement of the community…”(Section 4.25.1) 

Since the district also permits a diverse collection of retail, manufacturing, office, general 
contracting, and educational uses (all of which may need to park trucks and other vehicles 
overnight) it would seem unnecessarily restrictive to not allow vehicles, accessory to permitted 
uses, to remain overnight. Since all uses in this district require Special Permit review, all site 
impacts can be considered during the hearing process. 

This is what the amendment does, strikethrough below: 



PZ-2021-12: Proposed Amendments to the Zoning Regulations 2 
November 4, 2021 

4.25.3 - Permitted and Prohibited Uses: 

There are no permitted uses or Special Exceptions in this zone. Prohibited uses and 
activities include, but are not limited to, those uses and activities that would pose an 
unreasonable risk of having a significant adverse impact upon the surface water or 
groundwater resources of the Tankerhoosen River Watershed, including but not limited 
to, the following: Gasoline sales; automotive, sales, service, repairs or storage; the 
garaging or overnight parking of trucks (not including trucks or other vehicles associated 
with, or accessory to, uses such as manufacturing, distribution, retail, storage, etc… 
permitted through the special permit process and deemed to have met or exceeded the 
purpose of the district) or recreation vehicles (RV's); dry cleaning or commercial laundry 
facilities; car wash facilities; film processing or commercial photographic processing; 
junk yards; industrial waste storage or processing facilities; and the manufacture, 
treatment, handling, transportation, disposal or storage of hazardous materials, 
including bulk fuel storage.  

Other Review 

The Conservation Commission was briefed on this matter on October 19, 2021; they took no 
action nor provided substantive comments. 

Draft Motion 

I move that the Planning & Zoning Commission APPROVE PZ-2021-12, Overnight Parking in the 
PDZ district, with draft language dated 10-26-21, upon a finding that the text amendment is 
consistent with the Plan of Conservation and Development’s designation of the Exit 67 
Opportunity Zone and is consistent with the purpose of the PDZ Zoning District. 

Or 

Alternative Motion 





APPLICATION 

 3 

 



CUDDY 
+FEDER

445 Hamilton Avenue, 14th Floor 

White Plains, New York 10601 

T 91 47611300 

F 914 761 5372 

cuddyfeder.com 
LLP 

Kristen Motel 

km otel (1vcuddyfeder .com 

9/14/2021 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 

Chairman Roland Klee 
and Members of the Planning and Zoning Commission 
Town of Vernon 
14 Park Place 
Vernon, Connecticut 06066 

Re: Volta Electric Vehicle Charging/Display Kiosks 
Zoning Text Amendment Application 
Premises: Stop & Shop, 10 Pitkin Road, Vernon, CT 06066 

Dear Chairman and Members of the Planning and Zoning Commission: 

This letter and enclosed materials are respectfully submitted on behalf of Volta Charging, LLC 

("Volta"), in support of its Petition to amend the Town of Vernon's Zoning Regulations ("Zoning 
Regulations"). 

Volta respectfully proposes amendments to Sections 2.106, 16.1.1, and 16.3 of the Zoning 

Regulations to permit accessory electric vehicle charging kiosks equipped with electronic displays 
in Commercial and Industrial Zoning Districts. 

In support of the proposed amendments, enclosed please find an electronic copy of the following 
materials: 

Exhibit A: Application to Amend the Zoning Regulations; 

Exhibit B: Petition for Zoning Text Amendment; 

Exhibit C: Proposed Zoning Text Amendments; and 

Exhibit D: Site Plans prepared by Kimley-Horn, P.C. dated January 21, 2021, 

last revised June 11, 2021. 

A check made payable to the Town of Vernon in the amount of$ 260.00 representing the zoning 
amendment filing fee is being mailed to the Planning & Development Department. 

We respectfully request that this matter be placed on the Planning and Zoning Commission's 

October 21, 2021 meeting Agenda for discussion and public hearing. Should the Board or Town 

WESTCHESTER I NEW YORK CITY I HUDSON VALLEY I CONNECTICUT 

4930894.v3 



CUDDY 
+FEDER

LLP 
� 

September 14, 2021 

Page 2

Staff have any questions regarding the enclosed, please do not hesitate to contact us. Thank you 
in advance for your consideration in this regard. 

Sincerely, 

/2� 
Kristen Motel 
Enclosures 

__,' 

Cc: George McGregor, Vernon Town Planner 
Andrew Marchese, Vernon Zoning Enforcement Officer 
Shaun Gately, Vernon Economic Development Coordinator 
Volta Charging, LLC 
Kimley-Horn, P.C. 
Christopher B. Fisher, Esq. 
Allison Fausner, Esq. 

WESTCHESTER I NEW YORK CITY I HUDSON VALLEY I CONNECTICUT 

4930894. v3 



Exhibit A 



••• < •• r> .
. 
··········.·.·<<··· 

.. 

l'OWNOKVERN()!'4 PLANl'HNG:& ZONlNGl10MMISSION.<PZC)
• • • •••• -·

.
·- c •• --:-·-,.; 

•

• 
•• -••

• • •• • , , • • •••• • _
. - - _ -- •• ' • T •• ,> 

------ --. . . .. .. · .· . 
. . . · . .  · · .. · .. · .. ·· . 

. .. ... . . . 

APPLICATION: 
--:·· ::_:"i>:•::·:·:: ... :::: :::.• .: - _--:.- .

.\:.-:::-'.·>:_·: : .· 
This form is to be used to apply to the Verni:in Planning & Zoning Cornmissfon (PZC) for a change of zoning 
district, amendm�lil of the Zoning Regulations, Site Plan of Development (POD), Special Pertllit(s); amendment of. ··
the Subdivision• R.egulations, and/or approval of a (re) subdivision, or DMV location approyat Provide all the 
information requested. 

· 
· 

· · · · 

The applicant must be the property owner,.the property owner's agent, the Town of\Temon,.orsomeone with a 
direct fmancial interest in the subject properfy;<said interest shall be explained and written pennissiori for this
application must be obtained f'rotntheproperty owner and submitted with this applicationjfthe · applioaritds not the
property owner (ZR Section 2.3). 

The list of approvals and the references io .sectio.nsofthe Regulations are for in/ormatior,a/purposesonlY to assist•· .. 
with prepaiatiof <Jflhe PZC application and ai-i.{r,ot a definitive statement of the sole requirements that may app/y • · · · 
to a spedjicprq}ect. · · · · · · · · · ·· ·· 

. ·: i: t.·. -. .·.::-:::::
.
:.- . .. .:_ .· 

..

The applicant un�erstaridsth&t the applicatjon)s �olllplete only when all information and (iocurrients required b}'thi, 
PZC have been submitted and, further, that aiiy approval by the PZC reties upon comPlete and accurate information
being. provided by the applicant. · ·. Incorrectdnforma.tio11 provided by the applicant ma{ make the approval
invalid. The PZG may require additionarJnfonnaticm fo be provided by the applicant in the course of reviewinfthe
application iutd dudng the monitoring ofthe project 

. . . . . . . . . . . 

Provide aU the information requested: .·. 

Name: 

I. APPLICANT:
. · .·.· . . . .  

s.�ll\!1!! f e�2!1· beh_alf ��YIJ.Ifa Ch�
·
""'g""'in�g-,=,L,...L_C __ • _______ ...., 

.. - - . 

Title: __En�g"""P""'r_o..,J"""e""'ct ... ,;;;.M=a"'in;.;;,a�g ... e_r:...,,.--'--...------'-------------��-

Cornpariy:. Volta.Charging,.LL(>·•. 

Address: �l{aro Str.t��-· ---�-----"""""'--�
.· .. . . 
.... . . 

. . 

. San fram�i�£o, CA 24103 
. .. · : : .·. . 

Telepbone; ;p17-?Q3,-60�� .... '" , °" .,.,,,. 
: .- .. <·

. -
- -:· - .· 

.. ·/· 
·-:·_. 

••·.san1ueUee@volfachargfog.com

U. PRO.PE}JlTY OWNER (S):

Name:,;.._.;.._,.,;.Ac..r"-t'""h_u_r_H"""o;,.;.o�p_e.,.,.r ___ .,,.......,;,.,..._. =. """· 
.;.._.;.._-......... .,,._--------.;.._�

Title: _.;.;.;...·"""E""'x .. e'-c~u-t_iv .... e_V.,..
· 
•-ic_e.,..P_r .. e,"-s .. id .. e,;,,;,in'-t-"

· ·
.;..__.;.._ _________ �

C 
. . ·•· . Ceruzzi Properties,LLC·· omparty.� .. "'"�" .. -··=·-· ....... """ .. ·.;;;.· ...... ;;;. · -'-,;,,_....,..._;,......._�---'-,;,,----

Address: •••t7Z0PostRoad 
��,�--�'--,.-c,.-,-.-;._,.;._,.-�.,,_,--.,,;._�---� 

Fairfield, CT 06824 



· · .·. ·.· .· · · .·. · ·  .· . .

. . 
. .  · · · ·  .· · . .  · . .  · 

1 O PitldriRo�d ·. 

Assessor's ID Code: 

Land Record Refere11ce fo Deed Description: Volume: 1572 Page · 263 

Does this site contain a watercourse and/orwedands? (See the Inland Wetlands Map and IWR Section 2;14, 2.15, 
2;23, 2.24; 3.11 ;4) 

_Yes 
._. _No work will be<loneinregulated area. 
_Work will be done.in the regulated area 

lWC application bas been submitted 
. _ IWC application has ndt been submitted 

Is this property l1Jcatecl Within five hundred (500)Teetof a· rnuni cipal · boundary? 

_!_No
,.,.,.,....,...Yes: 

__ Bolton 
'"''_._Coventry 
-iEllington
..,,_?�farichester .

South Wfoctsor 
Tolland 

· · · · · 

Check ifHistcitic Status Applies: 

_ Located iri llistoric district: 

. Rockville 
.·
··.• · • TafoottvUte

_Individual histodcproperiy 



Title: Attorney for Applicant 

Company! Cuddy & E'eder, LLP 

,. WhiJePI, 

.. ·• .. .......;.-----�--.......;.-· .. · F�: --,.-.-----....,..-----"----'----..... 

: / k!"otel@c¥,4d}'.feder.com 



v, .. pzc APPLICATlON 
PROJECT SUl\1:MA.J{Y 

.. �--

Describe
. 
the project briefly in regard to the purpose of the project and. theactivities that will occur; Attach to this

applicatjon a complete 1111d �etajled clescriptionwithmaps ancldocumentation as required b:)'tlle"TowD ofVernon
Zoning "llegillatio11s" and ''Town ofVeriIQn Stil,division Regul�tions". · · · · · · · · 

... . :· ·-<-.
::: .

·
:,>. . 

.-· . .
· ·

.
· 

. : .·. ·.··.:·. :· <-:- ::.:.: ::· i<" ·._.·/ :_:: .. · ··. ·. 

Purpbse: Proposed Amendments to the Zoning Regulations t� permit electric vehicle charging/display kiosks 
:

-
··.·· ··.· . · . .

·.· . ·.··· 

General A.ctivities:Afi1en(J Zoning Regulations Sections 2.106, 16.l and}'i.3 to define
--_ .- .· .. ·· . · · .·· . . . - - . · . .  ··. ··-· - - · 

and establish spedfi� bulk design features and visibility requiremenkfor electric.··· ,. 
· ·, s· f '0fl1 ··t·.,,:"i\ · ·i 

· 
·· 

· 
aj,,n' · · ······· ··'i( ii,:«�-

vehicle charging /�is play kiosks· p�;mitt�!Jin Commf�ial. andJ11�Hstdat�onin}]?istricts. 

• Subdivision (Sub.Sec. 4, 5, 6) 
=Ilesijbdivisfon (Sub.·Sec. 4, 5, 6) 
. ··•··••···

·. Min()r rnodificationlsubdivision or resubdivision (Sub. Sec, 4.6)
· · .. · •••••· ·•· ·• Town ac:c:eptance of a road (Sub. Sec, 6.5�6; 8 & 9) 
�Ainendm¢nt of Subdivision Regulations (Sub. Sec. ll) 

.· . . . . - --- . . .· ·.· . .  . . .  · .·· · . · . . . . .. .  . 

S�e SubdiVisiollRegulations Sec. •Hor application fee schedules. 
· .··:.··. ·.·· ·:·-· .. _.· - ·:. · . . . :·-:··· · . . ...... · : . 

·>.· 
.
· ·- - . . ·.. . ... 

. � SoUErosion and Sediment Control Plan (ESCP) (Zll Sec. 2,l l7; 18) (Sub. 6.14) ··• 

� SUe Plan of Development (POQ) .. (ZRSec.14) 

l PQO approval (ZR. Sec. 14.f;l.1;14. L2) . . . 
> M.o4ifi¢�tion of an approvecl POJ) (ZR Sec. 14. Ll.1) 

____;fylinqrfoodificationofa sitePOD(ZR Sec, 14,1.1.2)··

-· .� SpecialJ>erlllit(s) (ZR Sectiofrl7,3)
.· -·: ::::) -: ·.· _·_ ._: __ ---.=-.- . : .. :··. ·:.: ... : .. ·· .. ·-":"·. 
2 SpeciatpermiHrt an aquil'�r aref(ZR Sec. 2.4; 2S;2'.119; 20)
_· _ ... Specia[Permit for excavation (ZR. Sec,2.52;2.79; 15) 
.--•···. Special Permit for use in a disrict (ZR Sec:.· 1.2 & 4). 

Special Permit for lot coverage (ZRSec,1.2; 2,61; 2,68;4) 
� Speclru Permit for signs (ZR Sec; 1.2; 2,106�115; 4; 16; 21.7)
_ �pecir1! Permit for parking (ZR Sec.A; l2;. 21.4 

,__,. Special Permit for elderly housing (ZR Sec. 2,60; 17 .4) 
Spec:ialPermitfor Bed&Breakfast (B & B)(ZRSec. 2;9; 17.3.4)

- SpeCialPenriit for serving alcohol(Zll Sec. 2J 03,J 7.1) 
. . 

. ·.· . . SpeciatPermitJor massage (ZR. Sec. t76•78; 4) 
,,_. 

·
. Special Permit for tele()OJIUilunicatiollS (Zll Sec, 2.21; 3 .23 & 23)

2_ Special Permit for dumps and/or inclnei:atots(ZRSection 8) 



. ·. . 

.. . ... . 
. . �- �· . 

_:·_-.. .  :-.:
·-· ··

_·.: ---- -=
-
=·=-

· .. _ _.:. 

. . i();,, s�U,1 F,.,n1,c,J.ci1iZ)l s,,�.,�� 4e,cribei11�i&, 
... · ·.·. ·.· . .. . 

. :-:. • . .. . ··•-:•.· . .. . 

f. 
:.:

� 1<, _r�1s1M· w5% _· :: 

1™' -'*""' ,�-�-.--�-"""':"-•--�.,..;,,,-�»»»�»>��----�--

.. 
·
.
· 

Special Permifmodifications (ZRSeCil7.3,2,2), C1te Zlt Section and describe activity, .

> > Site specific charige of:zoniilg distri�t a#c11ru1p (ZR Sec. I ;2i 1.3; 4)
·
.
·•· X• Amendment o(Zoni11g Regulations (SecJt.2; L3;4)·· ..

. .  ·· .. · .·.·. . . . .... . 
. · . .  · . .·· .. 

�Site specific change tithe Aquifer Protection Overlay Zon 

See ?onlng Regulations Section 22/or applicallonjee s¢he4ules . 
. ·. .. . ... · ... . . . 

Pealer of Repairer License (locatitln approvalfort:>MY)•· 



.. . . ... . . . ... .
.. . . .. 
.. .. . .  . 

.. _,_,· · ···; ·· ,m · } ·. 0 
• • •• V • • 

' 
• • • • • • •  

• 
• 

·:": ·:.:··· · :.:.: 
... .. ·.··.

·... 
. 
.:.: . .-.;· .... ..

. ·•.·•·VlI,·••APPLICATION •

. 

CONDITIONS·•1••8TIPULATIONS 
· .... . 

·:: .· .. · ·
·
:: 

. ::::-:·: ·
.·
: :• .· ·. . . .'.; ·. · .·. . . ::.: : ·. 

. . 
. . 

. :/ .· =
·=.· .. : :: ·: .. ·

. 
<< .. :· :.. . . . .. :=

.
= . 

· .· .. · 

'fhefollowing pr()visions. ;apply to all applicatic,ns submittedto the Planning & Zoning Commission (PZC) and. ax-e. 
incorpOrated llS part ()fthe application. · · · · · · · · 

•:: . . . . · · . . :: . · ·::·:·
.
· . . 

.. 
.:.• . .: . · ... 

All infoI1lllltfo11 shall be submitted to th� Town Planr1<:r and no/application shall be considered as being .filed if 
incomplete pr if delivered Jo any other Town Official (Sub Sec.4). · 

ICthe 11rea to be develop�d con ta ins more than'.011e�half (l/2) acre area. that will be physicaUy . altered .. or
disturbed, a completed erosi�n and st!cllmentitti"n contt(l[plari (ESCP) in accordance with Zoning Regulations
Section.JS .. andlorSubdivision RegulationsSectiori 6.l4,as11pplfoable, must

.
be ·submitted. The 11ppUcant shall.be 

· · responSible for aU costs associated with the cettificatiori of the ESCP. · · ·

.. By signing this applfoatiori, perntissionls granted to CoOUili.ssion ¢ernbers,•employees of the Town ofVemon,and
. persons . assjst�g Jbi, :fo\VO Staff to go· onto the· subject propl!t1.Y to rnake inspections pursuant te> the appUcittion. 

review; approval/bonding requirements, or. obtaining infonnation materially rele vant to the application. 
•: . . .. '· : . .  ·.:::·:::-:":.:: :•·:- :·: .. ... 

..··=-.·=· · . 
: . . · .. ::.: ·.··: .. :·· :::..···.>:::::.··· ·::-: ·:· . . ·· "::. ·.. .:·:: .· . ·.. ..·. · .:

· ·. · · . . ·.. 
. ... :: . 

Ntj application coming before a Commission may be �ithdr�wn ;fter ilhasbeen advertisedfor a pubUcbearing •. 
· ..•.•. tllll�S$ the (Jbaihnari or Secretaty of the polilllµSSio11Js riotjfit:� m 'Yfiting by the. applicant or his represc:ntative ,not .•. •·
·. ··•·· later than fqrty�eight(48)boµrs prior to the schedlll<id. hearirifbc:fore the Commission; AU fees encuinberedJil the

adVertislng and review of the application is non�retundabW (� Section 1.5). · · · ·. 

All applications roust be submitted ondrawingswhich are one of the following sizes: ... s.s··x.11 ''; J2'' X• 18"., 18" .x
�4,_; 24"x 36". Subdivision arid resubdivislon xnilps illiisfbe 24;' x 36''. · · · · · 

.· 
Tbfapplictttiori sballfoclude an 8,S" x 11" Snap showing theloc�ti.on of the site and an 8.S" jl1" generafplan of.
development (POD) illap showing the development proposed on the site. 

.· · ·

A legal description ofthe subjectpropertymust be subntUted with this•PZCapplication. The legal· descdptio11 
<should bear the Volume number and P11ge nurnber by whicli it iirrecorded in the land records, 

• ·•·•··Appllcations••·tQ·· the•. Planrung .• 
·
&·· •·zoning. •cn�01ission•••(PZC) •.. require···notification. •of •• property•.·owners•••·within •• two••

·.•· �undred feet (2Q0') of' the subject propc:ftY, AUst of property owners and a complete set 1>fmailing Jal>els 111ust
·. be submitted with the application; · · · · · · · · · · 

... 
•••

. 
Applic110tS shall submit one . copy· or a brief narr�tiveJnc:luding a traffic . impact . staternent1 outl�giJhe ·.

·· . ·.·• •• ••• .. propos�d activity and the reason for the applicatio11 .. ••· Th(ttaffic·· impact. statement.shatrpr<>vide $Uflicientdatafor
theN emon• Traffic Authority and PZ(}to be able tc, access traffic conditions relative to the location; site design, and . 

. • proposedactivity, · · · · · · . .  ·.·. · ·· · · · · · ·
· 

.· .
·. ·
•Applicant.· shan • submit · twenty (20} coples of a flap . showing atLlllfonnation required

.·
in Zoning .Regulations·•·· •

Seclion 14 .Site Flans, an4 Section 17.3.2 Special Permits as may be required, and/or the Subdivision R.egulatfons
Section 4,5,7, 

· · · 
· 

1'he fuap must. be prepared by a license� surveyor, if the application 
. 
involves ( a) c:xterior 111o�ificatio11 to . the 

... ·.· buildillg . or premises, such as .· off-stre¢t /parking, which need dimensionally·. critical measurements•. fo insure
cqmplfance with zoning or (b) the improyernerits involve disturbing more than one half acre ofland. 

· · ·· · 

. ·.· . . . ·. 
. 

AppUcant ghall submit the above-required information to .the Town Planning Office accompanied by a checkin. the
amou11Lcl.eter1Ilined by the fees. esbtbUshed. byJhe State of Connecticut, Town of Vernon and/or the PZC) with 
the application ... Thi! check, which is required as a filing fee1 .is tc, be payable to, "Town of Vernon'';. (See auached 
fee schedule). · · · · 

THE APPUCATIONWil.;L BE CONSIDERED INCOMPLETE IFANY REQUIRED TNFORMATION IS NOT
SUBMITTED; .· . . 

APPLICANT·SHALL FILE A COPY OF ANYI'R.OPOSED REGlJLA'I'lOI-:(AMENDMENT, ZQ�CHANGE, 
OR WE'Jl-ANDS REDESlGNATlO:N WITH TH1!1'QWN CLEIµ{ T�N (l 0) DAYS PRIOR TC> Tl:lli HEARING· 
AS PER SECTIONS 8-3(a)AND (4) ANP22a-42a (b) OF THE (JENEfiALSTATtJT�S. CERTIFICATIC>N OF. 

•· TitE .FILlNG UNDER THESE SECTIONS BYTHE APPLICA.NTMUST.BE PRESEN'I'EDATtHEPUBLlC,.
HEARING. 

. . . . . ... · .. ·.·. . . . .. .... .. . . .. . ·.·. . . . ... . .·. .. . . .. . .• 



Per Connecticut General Statutes (COS) Section 8-26: If an application submitted to the Planning & Zoning 
Commission (PZC) involves any activity or area regulated under the wetlands statutes, an application for this 
activity must be filed with the Inland Wetlands Commission (IWC) on or before the day the Planning & Zoning 
Commission (PZC) application is filed by the applicant. (IWR Sec. 3.11) 

Per COS Sec. 8-31: If the proposed activity is to take place within a watershed of a Water company, the applicant is 
required to file a copy of the application with the Water Company via certified mail within seven (7) days of the date 
of the application. (IWR Sec. 4.3.6). 

The applicant, undersigned, has reviewed the "Town of Vernon Planning and Zoning 
Regulations and Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Regulations" and has prepared this 
application with complete and accurate infonnation: 

Property Owner, Applicant, or Applicant's Agent 

.:==;? 
· Signature Date 

Signature Date 

TO BE FILLED IN BY THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

Date Application Submitted ________ _ 

Date Application Received by Commission
,__ 

______ _ 

PZC File: ______________ _ 



TO: 

FROM: ... 

·. .·.·· .. ·. 

: . . ·. . · ... : . ·•·::-: . . ·.· ... : .::. . . 
. . .. . . . .. . . .... . . . 

us1; nns FORM QNL°YIF THE REQt.JIREMENrs oF ·
• 8.3(a)/22-a42a(b)QFTliEC.Q'.S.:M:t.JSTllE MET

. .. - .. 

REFERENCE: · Zoning Text A'mendment Application 

Cover Letter 
Exhibit A': 
ExhibitB: 

·. Exhibit C:. ·
. ExhibitD: 

. . . ..... . 

. . . 

_. :-.-::•:-:•:"::::-..-: ·-: ·.:.--:·/ ::: ·: .:.: _."·:•-:·· ... :· .. ·. 

Thi. att11cbed·•Jocuwents, •. consisting of: . . . ... . ... 

. .. . .. 
. . ·.· · . .  · . . . ·.· · ·. 

A'pplicatfontoA'mend .t�e Zoning Regulations;· 
: Petition for Zoning 'Text A:rnendment; 
Proposed Zoning Text A'inendments; and 
Site fJ!ans prep�red by Kimley�IIorn, P .C. dated .January '21, 2021, last revised June 11, '.2021 . 

Signature 



Exhibit B 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: TOWN OF VERNON 
COUNTY OF TOLLAND: STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------X 

In the Matter of the Application of 

Volta Charging, LLC 

Petition to the Amend the Zoning Regulations of the Town of 
Vernon to Permit Electric Vehicle Charging/Display Kiosks on 
Parcels in Commercial and Industrial Districts that Will Apply to 
Real Property Located at 10 Pitkin Road, Designated on the Tax 
Map of the Town of Vernon as Section 2, Block 11, Lot 18 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------X 

PETITION 

TO THE HONORABLE CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF VERNON 

The Petition of Volta Charging, LLC ("Volta" or the "Petitioner") respectfully shows and alleges in 
support of Petitioner's request: 

PETITIONER: Volta Charging, LLC is a corporation organized and existing under the laws 
of the State of Delaware and is requesting text amendments to the Zoning Regulations of 
the Town of Vernon (the "Zoning Regulations") to permit EV Charging/Display Kiosks on 
parcels classified in Commercial and Industrial Districts subject to specific bulk, design 
and visibility requirements. 

Volta operates electric vehicle ("EV") charging networks throughout the United States and 
provides free charging in convenient locations. By generating revenue through sponsored 
content, Volta creates value and passes that on to EV owners who can charge while they 
shop. This encourages consumer adoption of electric vehicles with net reductions in 
carbon emissions. 

Volta is partnering with Stop & Shops across the Northeast to establish on-site electric 
vehicle charging kiosks that enhance the shift from combustion-powered miles to electric 
miles. The charging kiosks include a digital display feature for various sponsored content, 
which enables Volta to provide the vehicle charge at no cost to the driver while it is parked 
on-site. 

THE PARCEL & FUTURE PROPOSAL: The Petitioner is proposing to install two (2) EV 
Charging/Display Kiosks in the parking lot of the Stop & Shop located at 10 Pitkin Road 
(the "Parcel") in the Town of Vernon, Connecticut. 

The Parcel is currently classified within the Commercial ("C") Zoning District and is 
situated in the northeast quadrant of the intersection of Talcottville Road/Route 83 and 
the Exit 63 WB Offramp from Interstate 84 ("I-84"). The Parcel is improved with a Stop & 
Shop, Stop & Shop gas station and a vacant storefront. 

Volta proposes to convert two (2) standard parking spaces into two (2) electric vehicle 
spaces with charging kiosks located in adjacent existing landscaped islands. The kiosks are 

4930887.v3 



approximately seven (7) feet tall and three (3) feet wide and include digital displays that 
are four (4) feet tall and 2¼ feet wide. 

The EV Charging/Display Kiosks will be located in the first row of parking spaces, closest 
to the Stop & Shop building entrance to target pedestrian traffic. The kiosks are not 
intended for any off-site visibility. The digital displays themselves have an auto-dimming 
feature and are equipped to display subtle motion with sponsored content changing at a 
maximum of 8-second intervals. Concept drawings and renderings of the proposed EV 
Charging/Display Kiosks are annexed hereto as Exhibit D.

    IN FURTHERANCE OF THE TOWN OF VERNON'S 2021 DRAFT PLAN OF CONSERVATION AND
DEVELOPMENT, THE PROPOSED EV CHARGING/DISPLAY KIOSKS WILL ENHANCE
SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES AND PROMOTE ECONOMIC GROWTH: The proposed zoning text
amendments will permit EV Charging/Display Kiosks in limited locations to serve and
complement the commercial and industrial zones while also promoting sustainable
practices and supporting businesses development. See Exhibit C - Zoning Text
Amendments.

The Town of Vernon 2021 Draft Plan of Conservation and Development ("2021 POCD")
identifies the objectives of adopting sustainable practices, specifically citing the promotion
of EV charging stations, as well as providing an attractive and supportive business
environment through an efficient, updated regulatory process.1

The proposed zoning amendments will enhance Vernon's sustainability initiatives that
specifically encourage the installation of EV charging stations, in addition to encouraging
sustainable development through energy efficiency and implementing new measures to
reduce emissions.2 As a silver-certified member of Sustainable Connecticut, Vernon
strives to implement best practice "actions", one of which is supporting zero-emission
vehicle deployment by creating EV infrastructure for residents and travelers.s The
proposed zoning amendments are integral to encouraging sustainable transportation
options for Vernon's citizens and visitors.

In addition to the promotion of sustainability objectives, kiosks permitted under the
proposed zoning amendment will promote economic growth and a supportive business
environment by encouraging expansion and opportunities within an appropriate
commercial district, such as the one the Pitkin Road Stop & Shop is classified within.4 The
proposed zoning amendments include criterion specifically designed to ensure that EV
Charging/Display Kiosks will be compatible with surrounding land uses.

Amending the Zoning Regulations to permit EV Charging/Display Kiosks in commercial
and industrial areas furthers Vernon's goals of fostering sustainability initiatives,
promoting economic growth and adopting regulations that attract new investments.

1 See 2021 POCD, pgs. 45, 56. 
2 See 2021 POCD, pg. 77. 
3 See Sustainable Connecticut, Action 6.4 - Support Zero Emission Vehicle Deployment, 
https://sustainablect.org/actions-certifications/actions/#open/action/42. 
4 See 2021 POCD, pgs. 5, 6, 45, 54. 

4930887.v3 



WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that this Petition be granted in its 
entirety thereby amending the Zoning Regulations of the Town of Vernon to permit EV 
Charging/Display Kiosks on parcels classified in Commercial and Industrial Zoning 
Districts subject to specific bulk, design and visibility requirements. 

Dated: September 14, 2021 

Respectfully submitted, 

�--� 
Kristen Motel 
Cuddy & Feder LLP 
Attorneys for Petitioners 
445 Hamilton Avenue, 14th Floor 
White Plains, New York 10601 

4930887.v3 



Exhibit C 



4949344.v2 

Exhibit C 

Town of Vernon Proposed Zoning Text Amendment 

Section 2: Definitions 

Subsection 2.106 - Sign, Advertising: 

2.106.5 – Electric Vehicle (“EV”) Charging/Display Kiosk: A combined electric vehicle 
charging kiosk with internally illuminated LED displays. 

Section 16: Signs 

Subsection 16.1 – General Requirements  

All signs erected in the Town of Vernon shall comply with the requirements set forth below in 
addition to all other applicable regulations. 

16.1.1 – Flashing, rotating, and animated signs are not permitted in any zone under any 
circumstances, with the exception of EV Charging/Display Kiosks permitted subject to the 
provisions of Section 16.3.6. Electronic Message Boards (EMBs) may be permitted when 
granted a Special Permit by the Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) subject to the 
provisions of Section 17.3 and the requirements and criteria of section 16.3. EMBs that 
display only static messages of time and/or temperature or gasoline pricing shall not 
require a special permit. For purposes of this section "static messages" or "static displays" 
shall mean electronic messages that change infrequently (generally fewer than two or 
three times within 24 hours). 

16.1.1.13 – All signs must be located on the same parcel as the use to which the sign 
pertains, with the exception of EV Charging/Display Kiosks permitted subject to the 
provisions of Section 16.3.6. 

Subsection 16.3 - Signs Permitted in Commercial and Industrial Districts: 

16.3.6 – EV Charging/Display Kiosks subject to the following requirements and conditions: 

16.3.6.1 – EV Charging/Display Kiosks shall not exceed 21.5 square feet in size and 7.5 feet 
in height. 
16.3.6.2 – EV Charging/Display Kiosks display screen shall not exceed 9 square feet. 
16.3.6.3 – EV Charging/Display Kiosks shall be equipped with an auto-dimming feature. 
16.3.6.4 – EV Charging/Display Kiosks shall limit content refresh rates to no more than 
every eight (8) seconds.   
16.3.6.5 – EV Charging/Display Kiosks shall not be visible from public rights of way. 



Exhibit D 



CD90s01/21/2021 TAS

N
O

TE
: T

H
E

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

S
IZ

E
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

LA
N

 IS
 2

4"
 X

 3
6"

.  
S

C
A

LE
 R

A
TI

O
 IS

 N
O

T 
V

A
LI

D
 F

O
R

 R
E

D
U

C
E

D
 O

R
 E

N
LA

R
G

E
D

 S
H

E
E

T 
S

IZ
E

S

155 DE HARO STREET
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103

PERMIT

06/11/2021

10 PITKIN ROAD
VERNON, CT 06066

STOP & SHOP #613
VERNON

1 N LEXINGTON AVE, SUITE 505
WHITE PLAINS, NY 10601

Main: 914.368.9200 | www.kimley-horn.com
© 2021 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

1
CD100s03/18/2021 TAS2
CD100 REVISIONS PER VOLTA COMMENTS06/11/2021 TAS3

CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL PLANS & EXISTING LOCATIONS, CONDITIONS ON THE JOB
SITE & SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE ENGINEER IN WRITING OF ANY DISCREPANCIES

BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH THE WORK OR BE RESPONSIBLE FOR SAME

CALL AT LEAST TWO WORKING

DAYS BEFORE YOU DIG

Know what's BELOW.
CALL before you dig.

N

DIG ALERT

TA
LC

O
TT

VI
LL

E 
RO

AD

STOP & SHOP #613 VERNON
10 PITKIN ROAD

VERNON, CT 06066
TOWN OF VERNON

APPLICANT:

SITE PARTNER:

PROGRAM MANAGER:

CIVIL ENGINEER:

ELECTRICAL ENGINEER:

NOT TO SCALE

N

NOT TO SCALE C0-00

COVER SHEET

VICINITY MAP LOCAL MAP CALL BEFORE YOU DIG

SHEET INDEX

PROJECT TEAMCONTRACTOR VERIFICATION CHECKLIST

·

PROJECT DESCRIPTIONCODE BLOCK

ITEM TASK YES NO N/A

SITE

SITE

Sheet Number Sheet Title

C0-00 COVER SHEET

C0-01 GENERAL NOTES

C0-02 VOLTA STATION OVERVIEW

C1-00 OVERALL SITE PLAN

C2-00 ENLARGED SITE PLAN

C3-00 SITE DETAILS

C3-01 SITE DETAILS

C3-02 SITE DETAILS

C3-03 SITE DETAILS

E1-00 ELECTRICAL ONE LINE DIAGRAM & PANEL SCHEDULE

E2-00 ELECTRICAL NOTES & DETAILS

PITKIN ROAD



CD90s01/21/2021 TAS

N
O

TE
: T

H
E

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

S
IZ

E
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

LA
N

 IS
 2

4"
 X

 3
6"

.  
S

C
A

LE
 R

A
TI

O
 IS

 N
O

T 
V

A
LI

D
 F

O
R

 R
E

D
U

C
E

D
 O

R
 E

N
LA

R
G

E
D

 S
H

E
E

T 
S

IZ
E

S

155 DE HARO STREET
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103

PERMIT

06/11/2021

10 PITKIN ROAD
VERNON, CT 06066

STOP & SHOP #613
VERNON

1 N LEXINGTON AVE, SUITE 505
WHITE PLAINS, NY 10601

Main: 914.368.9200 | www.kimley-horn.com
© 2021 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

1
CD100s03/18/2021 TAS2
CD100 REVISIONS PER VOLTA COMMENTS06/11/2021 TAS3

GENERAL NOTES:

EROSION CONTROL & GRADING NOTES:

SITE NOTES:

”

”

”

”
”

”

”

”

”

”

”

C0-01

GENERAL NOTES

ADA COMPLIANCE:

PROJECT LEGEND:



CD90s01/21/2021 TAS

N
O

TE
: T

H
E

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

S
IZ

E
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

LA
N

 IS
 2

4"
 X

 3
6"

.  
S

C
A

LE
 R

A
TI

O
 IS

 N
O

T 
V

A
LI

D
 F

O
R

 R
E

D
U

C
E

D
 O

R
 E

N
LA

R
G

E
D

 S
H

E
E

T 
S

IZ
E

S

155 DE HARO STREET
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103

PERMIT

06/11/2021

10 PITKIN ROAD
VERNON, CT 06066

STOP & SHOP #613
VERNON

1 N LEXINGTON AVE, SUITE 505
WHITE PLAINS, NY 10601

Main: 914.368.9200 | www.kimley-horn.com
© 2021 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

1
CD100s03/18/2021 TAS2
CD100 REVISIONS PER VOLTA COMMENTS06/11/2021 TAS3

C0-02

VOLTA STATION
OVERVIEW

FOR
INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY



01

02

T

T

T

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

T

T

T

T

T

CD90s01/21/2021 TAS

N
O

TE
: T

H
E

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

S
IZ

E
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

LA
N

 IS
 2

4"
 X

 3
6"

.  
S

C
A

LE
 R

A
TI

O
 IS

 N
O

T 
V

A
LI

D
 F

O
R

 R
E

D
U

C
E

D
 O

R
 E

N
LA

R
G

E
D

 S
H

E
E

T 
S

IZ
E

S

155 DE HARO STREET
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103

PERMIT

06/11/2021

10 PITKIN ROAD
VERNON, CT 06066

STOP & SHOP #613
VERNON

1 N LEXINGTON AVE, SUITE 505
WHITE PLAINS, NY 10601

Main: 914.368.9200 | www.kimley-horn.com
© 2021 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

1
CD100s03/18/2021 TAS2
CD100 REVISIONS PER VOLTA COMMENTS06/11/2021 TAS3

CONSTRUCTION NOTES:

PARKING NOTE:

REFERENCE NOTE:

DISCLAIMER

OVERALL SITE PLAN

N

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

C1-00

OVERALL SITE
PLAN

1

IMAGE REFERENCE:

AERIAL IMAGE(S) PROVIDED BY NEARMAP
IMAGERY ©2021 Nearmap, HERE



01
02

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

T

T

T

CD90s01/21/2021 TAS

N
O

TE
: T

H
E

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

S
IZ

E
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

LA
N

 IS
 2

4"
 X

 3
6"

.  
S

C
A

LE
 R

A
TI

O
 IS

 N
O

T 
V

A
LI

D
 F

O
R

 R
E

D
U

C
E

D
 O

R
 E

N
LA

R
G

E
D

 S
H

E
E

T 
S

IZ
E

S

155 DE HARO STREET
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103

PERMIT

06/11/2021

10 PITKIN ROAD
VERNON, CT 06066

STOP & SHOP #613
VERNON

1 N LEXINGTON AVE, SUITE 505
WHITE PLAINS, NY 10601

Main: 914.368.9200 | www.kimley-horn.com
© 2021 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

1
CD100s03/18/2021 TAS2
CD100 REVISIONS PER VOLTA COMMENTS06/11/2021 TAS3

ENLARGED SITE PLAN

DISCLAIMER

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

C2-00

ENLARGED SITE
PLAN

1

N



CD90s01/21/2021 TAS

N
O

TE
: T

H
E

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

S
IZ

E
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

LA
N

 IS
 2

4"
 X

 3
6"

.  
S

C
A

LE
 R

A
TI

O
 IS

 N
O

T 
V

A
LI

D
 F

O
R

 R
E

D
U

C
E

D
 O

R
 E

N
LA

R
G

E
D

 S
H

E
E

T 
S

IZ
E

S

155 DE HARO STREET
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103

PERMIT

06/11/2021

10 PITKIN ROAD
VERNON, CT 06066

STOP & SHOP #613
VERNON

1 N LEXINGTON AVE, SUITE 505
WHITE PLAINS, NY 10601

Main: 914.368.9200 | www.kimley-horn.com
© 2021 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

1
CD100s03/18/2021 TAS2
CD100 REVISIONS PER VOLTA COMMENTS06/11/2021 TAS3

GENERAL NOTES

1. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE, THE FOLLOWING NOTES RELATING TO
THE "SITE DETAILS" SHEETS SHALL GOVERN.

2. COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF CONCRETE FOUNDATION SHALL BE A
MINIMUM OF 4,500 PSI AT 28 DAYS WITH MAXIMUM W/CM RATIO OF
0.45 AND AIR-CONTENT OF 5% +/- 1.5%.

3. MINIMUM YIELD STRENGTH OF REINFORCEMENT TO BE 60,000 PSI
(ASTM-A615).

4. REFERENCE CIVIL AND ELEC DRAWING FOR EQUIPMENT LAYOUT,
LOCATION OF CONDUIT, ETC.

5. FINAL ANCHOR BOLT AND POLE DESIGN INCLUDING SIZE AND
CONFIGURATION ARE BY MFR.

6. BEFORE STARTING ANY WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY
ALL DIMENSIONS ON THE SITE AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES
IMMEDIATELY TO THE ENGINEER.

7. NO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING REPORT WAS PROVIDED BY THE
OWNER. FOUNDATION DESIGN IS BASED ON A MINIMUM OF 1,500
PSF NET ALLOWABLE BEARING PRESSURE ON UNDISTURBED
NATURAL SOIL OR COMPACTED FILL UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

8. UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY THE OWNER, ALL FOUNDATION
WORK RELATED TO INSTALLATION OF REBAR SHALL BE INSPECTED
BY OTHERS.

9. KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR
THE DESIGN OF THE EQUIPMENT OR ANCHORAGE TO THE
FOUNDATION. MANUFACTURER SHALL SUBMIT LOADS TO
ENGINEER FOR RECORD KEEPING PURPOSES ONLY.

10. DESIGN IS BASED ON THE SPECIFIC EQUIPMENT SHOWN IN THESE
DRAWINGS AND ILLUSTRATED ON THE VOLTA CUT SHEETS.

11. ALL MATERIALS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LOCAL
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION SPECIFICATIONS.

12. ALL FOUNDATIONS ARE TO INCLUDE COMPACTED SUBGRADE AND
MINIMUM 6" COMPACTED STONE BASE UNLESS OTHERWISE
SPECIFIED.

13. BUILDING CODE: IBC 2018
13.1.1. DESIGN LOADS
13.1.2. DEAD LOAD: SELF WEIGHT
13.1.3. LIVE LOAD: BOLLARDS ARE NOT DESIGNED FOR FULL 6

KIP IMPACT LOAD UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
"VEHICULAR RATED"

13.1.4. WIND LOAD: ASCE 7-10
13.1.4.1. OCCUPANCY CATEGORY = II
13.1.1.2. WIND SPEED = 170 MPH
13.1.1.3. EXPOSURE = B

C3-00

SITE DETAILS

5N.T.S.
SCALE 7N.T.S.

SCALE

1N.T.S.
SCALE 2N.T.S.

SCALE
N.T.S.
SCALE

6N.T.S.
SCALE

3

HIGH-VISIBILITY FENCING

WOOD OR STEEL STAKE

FINISHED GRADE

SENSITIVE
AREAS

TREE DRIPLINE
(TYP.)

NOTE: 
FURNISH AND INSTALL TEMPORARY HIGH-VISIBILITY FENCING AT
CONSTRUCTION LIMITS PRIOR TO ANY LAND DISTURBANCE.

TREE PROTECTION/HIGH
VISIBILITY FENCING

LIMITS OF
DISTURBANCE

36"
MIN.

TREE PROTECTION

1" DIA. HOLE (TYP.)

R1" (TYP.)

ACHORAGE PINS NO. 7
RE-BARS 22" LONG (MIN.)
ANCHOR PINS SHALL BE
RECESSED 1 IN.

SECTION VIEW

REINFORCEMENT 2-NO.3
DEFORMED BARS

NOTES:
1. PRECAST CONCRETE WHEEL STOPS SHALL BE LOCATED AS SHOWN

ON THE PLANS. THEN SECURED IN PLACE WITH TWO (2) NO. 7
REINFORCEMENT BARS PER WHEEL STOP.

2. COST OF THE REINFORCEMENT BARS WILL BE INCIDENTAL TO THE
CONTRACT UNIT PRICE BID PER EACH FOR THE WHEEL STOPS.

3. WHEEL STOPS TO BE PAINTED WHITE IN ACCORDANCE WITH STRIPING
GUIDELINES.

CONCRETE WHEEL STOP

6 1/2"

FRONT VIEW
TYPE II (AUTOMOBILE)

1 3/16"
(TYP.)

2" COVER
2" COVER

(TYP.)

24"
MIN.

FOR REFERENCE ONLY, DESIGNED AND PROVIDED BY OTHERS FOR REFERENCE ONLY, DESIGNED AND PROVIDED BY OTHERS FOR REFERENCE ONLY, DESIGNED AND PROVIDED BY OTHERS

EV STRIPING GUIDELINES EV STRIPING GUIDELINES EV STRIPING GUIDELINES

N.T.S.
SCALE

℄ ℄

℄

NOT
USED

NOT
USED

(4) 1/2" DIA. HILTI KWIK
BOLT TZ SS ANCHORS

W/ MINIMUM
EFFECTIVE

EMBEDMENT OF 3 1/4"
OR ENGINEER

APPROVED EQUAL
(TYP.)

#5 REINF. @ 9"
O.C. TOP AND
BOTTOM EACH
WAY (TYP.)

SIDE

18" (SQ.)
24" (RND.)

LATERALLY
RESTRAINED

24" OR TO FROST
DEPTH WHICHEVER IS

GREATER

FRONT

18" (SQ.)
24" (RND.)

14"x14"x1/4"
STEEL BASE PLATE

PROVIDED BY VOLTA

6" 2"

REMOTE PEDESTAL STANDARD FLUSH FOUNDATION
(OUTSIDE OF VEHICLE IMPACT AND OVERHANG AREAS)

NOT LATERALLY
RESTRAINED

36" OR TO FROST
DEPTH WHICHEVER IS

GREATER

FLUSH REMOTE PEDESTAL FOUNDATION 4

ISOMETRIC

4x4 JUNCTION BOX OR
APPROVED ALTERNATIVE

REFER TO ELECTRICAL ONE
LINE DIAGRAM ON SHEET
E1-00 FOR CONDUIT SIZE

CONTRACTOR TO
INSTALL 1.25" & FUTURE
1" SPARE CONDUIT.
REFERENCE E1-00 FOR
MORE INFORMATION

NOTES:
1. REMOTE CHARGING PEDESTAL TO BE PROVIDED BY VOLTA.
2. CHARGING CABLE TO BE ROUTED FROM EV KIOSK TO HOLSTER THROUGH UNDERGROUND

CONDUIT AS SHOWN BELOW.
3. AT CONTRACTOR'S OPTION A 24" DIAMETER SONOTUBE OR EQUIVALENT FORMWORK MAY BE

USED IN LIEU OF SQUARE FOUNDATION FOR STANDARD FLUSH FOUNDATION.
4. REMOTE PEDESTAL TO BE USED FOR LEVEL 2 STATIONS ONLY.
5. MAX CONDUIT DISTANCE DETERMINED BY VOLTAGE DROP ACROSS WIRE RUN FROM REMOTE

HOLSTER TO CHARGING STATION. TOTAL VOLTAGE DROP IS FROM ELECTRICAL PANEL TO
REMOTE PEDESTAL AND SHALL NOT EXCEED 3%. REFER TO VOLTAGE DROP TABLE.

VOLTAGE DROP TABLE

START
POINT END POINT

AMPERAGE
(A) VOLTAGE

DISTANCE
(FT)

CONDUCTOR
(AWG)

CONDUCTOR
RESISTANCE V.D. V.D.

%

EV# REMOTE PEDESTAL 40 208 5 6 0.51 0.20 0.10

EV# REMOTE PEDESTAL 40 208 20 6 0.51 0.82 0.39

EV# REMOTE PEDESTAL 40 208 35 6 0.51 1.43 0.69

EV# REMOTE PEDESTAL 40 208 50 6 0.51 2.04 0.98

NOT
USED

NOT
USED



CD90s01/21/2021 TAS

N
O

TE
: T

H
E

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

S
IZ

E
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

LA
N

 IS
 2

4"
 X

 3
6"

.  
S

C
A

LE
 R

A
TI

O
 IS

 N
O

T 
V

A
LI

D
 F

O
R

 R
E

D
U

C
E

D
 O

R
 E

N
LA

R
G

E
D

 S
H

E
E

T 
S

IZ
E

S

155 DE HARO STREET
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103

PERMIT

06/11/2021

10 PITKIN ROAD
VERNON, CT 06066

STOP & SHOP #613
VERNON

1 N LEXINGTON AVE, SUITE 505
WHITE PLAINS, NY 10601

Main: 914.368.9200 | www.kimley-horn.com
© 2021 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

1
CD100s03/18/2021 TAS2
CD100 REVISIONS PER VOLTA COMMENTS06/11/2021 TAS3

C3-01

SITE DETAILS

SIGN POST

NOTES:
1. SIGN TO BE GREEN (PANTONE 355C) WITH WHITE LETTERING AND MUST BE

REFLECTIVE LETTERING.
2. TO BE PLACED AT HEAD OF PARKING STALL.
3. POST MOUNTED OBJECTS PER ADA CODE SECTION 11B-307.3.
4. THIS DETAIL SHALL ONLY BE USED WHEN SIGN POST IS LOCATED OUTSIDE

OF PARKING LOT PAVEMENT AND 2' CAR OVERHAND ZONE.

FINISH GRADE

60" MIN. OR 80"
MIN. IF LOCATED

WITHIN AN
ACCESSIBLE

ROUTE

36" OR MIN.
FROST DEPTH
WHICHEVER
IS GREATER

3" MIN.

12"

2" MAX.

NOTES:
1. SIGN TO BE GREEN (PANTONE 355C) WITH WHITE LETTERING AND MUST BE

REFLECTIVE LETTERING.
2. TO BE PLACED AT HEAD OF PARKING STALL.
3. POST MOUNTED OBJECTS PER ADA CODE SECTION 11B-307.3.
4. THIS DETAIL SHALL BE USED WHEN SIGN POST IS LOCATED IN PARKING LOT

PAVEMENT, OR WITHIN 2' CAR OVERHAND ZONE.
5. REFER TO NOTES FOR ASSUMED GEOTECHNICAL 164 PARAMETERS. THIS SIGN

DESIGN ASSUMES ASCE 7-10 WIND SPEED AND AN EXPOSURE CATEGORY B. IF
EITHER OF THESE GEOTECHNICAL PROPERTIES OR ASCE 7-10 WIND
PARAMETERS DIFFER BASED ON LOCATION THE DESIGN MUST BE UPDATED BY A
STRUCTURAL ENGINEER.

36"

SIGN POST W/BOLLARD

3" MIN.

NOTES:
1. SIGN TO BE GREEN (PANTONE 355C) WITH WHITE LETTERING AND MUST BE REFLECTIVE

LETTERING.
2. TO BE PLACED AT HEAD OF PARKING STALL.
3. POST MOUNTED OBJECTS PER ADA CODE SECTION 11B-307.3.
4. SIGN AND POST ARE NOT IMPACT RATED UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
5. PRIOR TO DRILLING, CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THICKNESS OF EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB

IS AT LEAST 10" AND THAT 6" ANCHOR EMBEDMENT CAN BE PROVIDED.

36"

POST INSTALLED SIGN POST W/BOL.

10"
MIN.

NOTES:
1. SIGN TO BE GREEN (PANTONE 355C) WITH WHITE LETTERING AND MUST BE REFLECTIVE

LETTERING.
2. TO BE PLACED AT HEAD OF PARKING STALL.
3. POST MOUNTED OBJECTS PER ADA CODE SECTION 11B-307.3.
4. SIGN AND POST ARE NOT IMPACT RATED UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
5. PRIOR TO DRILLING, CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THICKNESS OF EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB

IS AT LEAST 10" AND THAT 6" ANCHOR EMBEDMENT CAN BE PROVIDED.

4 - 3/4" HILTI-HY200 Z RODS
(GALV) AND HILTI HIT-HY200
ADHESIVE WITH MIN 6"
EMBEDMENT (SEE NOTE 3)

PL 3/4"x13"x13" W/1-1/2" EDGE
DISTANCE (TYP.) (HDG)

1/4" NEOPRENE PAD

SEALANT ALL
AROUND

10"
MIN.

POST INSTALLED SIGN POST

NO TIME LIMIT SIGN
STADIUMS, OTHER VENUES, ECT.

SIGN INSTALLATION TYPE:
CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH VOLTA TO DETERMINE EVCS SIGN TYPE PRIOR TO
INSTALLATION.

SIGN INSTALLATION HEIGHT:
ALL SIGNS TO BE INSTALLED AT 60" ABOVE FINISH FLOOR. IF SIGNS ARE LOCATED WITHIN AN
ACCESSIBLE ROUTE, THEY WILL BE INSTALLED AT 80" ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR. MEASUREMENTS
ARE TAKEN FROM BOTTOM OF LOWEST SIGN.

60" MIN. OR 80"
MIN. IF LOCATED

WITHIN AN
ACCESSIBLE

ROUTE

4" STEEL PIPE BOLLARD FILLED
WITH NON-SHRINK GROUT (WHEN IN
FRONT OF PARKING SPACE PAINTED
TRAFFIC YELLOW)

EV PARKING SIGN
(SEE DETAIL 12, THIS SHEET)

1-3/4"x1-3/4" SQUARE POST
12 GA. GALV. STEEL

4" STEEL PIPE BOLLARD FILLED
WITH NON-SHRINK GROUT (WHEN IN
FRONT OF PARKING SPACE PAINTED
TRAFFIC YELLOW)

SLOPE CONCRETE AWAY
FROM POST

UNDISTURBED
NATIVE SOIL

2"x2" SQUARE POST
12 GA. GALV. STEEL
W/ (2) 5/16"x1" SS BOLTS

CONCRETE BASE

EV PARKING SIGN
(SEE DETAIL 12, THIS SHEET)

TYP.

151413N.T.S.
SCALE12N.T.S.

SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

1110

98

45 MIN. TIME LIMIT SIGN
FAST FOOD RESTAURANTS, ECT.

1 HR. TIME LIMIT SIGN
DRUG STORES OR SIMILAR QUICK/CONVENIENCE SITES

2 HR. TIME LIMIT SIGN
GROCERY STORES, MALLS, ECT.

3 HR. TIME LIMIT SIGN
MOVIE THEATERS, ENTERTAINMENT CENTERS, ECT.

FINISH GRADE

60" MIN. OR 80"
MIN. IF LOCATED

WITHIN AN
ACCESSIBLE

ROUTE

5'-3" OR MIN.
FROST DEPTH
WHICHEVER
IS GREATER

EV PARKING SIGN
(SEE DETAIL 12, THIS SHEET)

UNDISTURBED
NATIVE SOIL

CONCRETE BASE

24"
MIN.

60" MIN. OR 80"
MIN. IF LOCATED

WITHIN AN
ACCESSIBLE

ROUTE

1-3/4"x1-3/4" SQUARE POST
12 GA. GALV. STEEL

1-3/4"x1-3/4" SQUARE POST
12 GA. GALV. STEEL

1-3/4"x1-3/4" SQUARE POST
12 GA. GALV. STEEL

4 - 3/4" HILTI-HY200 Z RODS
(GALV) AND HILTI HIT-HY200
ADHESIVE WITH MIN 6"
EMBEDMENT (SEE NOTE 3)

PL 3/4"x13"x13" W/1-1/2" EDGE
DISTANCE (TYP.) (HDG)

1/4" NEOPRENE PAD

TYP.

SEALANT ALL
AROUND

EV PARKING SIGN
(SEE DETAIL 12, THIS SHEET)

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

30 MIN. TIME LIMIT SIGN
DCFC STALLS

FOR REFERENCE ONLY, DESIGNED AND PROVIDED BY OTHERS.

SIGN REQUIREMENTS 4" DETERRENT BOL. W/ BASE PLATE 4" DETERRENT BOL. W/ THREADED BASE 4" DETERRENT BOLLARD

NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL X-RAY CONCRETE SLAB TO FIELD VERIFY EXISTING REINFORCEMENT

LOCATIONS PRIOR TO DRILLING. CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE GREAT CARE TO ENSURE AT
LEAST 3" GAP BETWEEN ANCHORS AND EXISTING REINFORCEMENT AND STRESSING
TENDONS.

2. CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE PLACEMENT OF BOLLARD DOES NOT IMPACT VISIBILITY OF
STATION SCREEN.

3. CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE BOLLARD PLACEMENT DOES NOT OBSTRUCT 3' DOOR SWING ON
BOTH SIDES OF MEDIA STATION.

4. BOLLARDS ARE NOT DESIGNED FOR VEHICULAR IMPACT.

3'-0"

4" 304 SS PIPE FILLED
WITH CONCRETE

FOR REFERENCE ONLY, DESIGNED AND PROVIDED BY OTHERS.

PIPE SURFACE: UNFINISHED
STAINLESS STEEL

BASE PLATE. SEE DETAIL BELOW.
PROVIDE SHIM/GROUT AS
REQUIRED FOR LEVELING

EXISTING CONCRETE

BASE PLATE DETAIL

4.41"

4.41"

(4) HILTI 1/2" DIA. HDI+
STAINLESS STEEL ANCHORS
W/ 2" EMBEDMENT

(4) 5/8" THRU HOLES

0.55" THICK 304 SS
BASE PLATE

Ø8"

2'-8"

4" 304 SS PIPE

FOR REFERENCE ONLY, DESIGNED AND PROVIDED BY OTHERS.

PIPE SURFACE: UNFINISHED
STAINLESS STEEL

THREADED BOLT DOWN BASE.
SEE DETAIL BELOW. PROVIDE
SHIM/GROUT AS REQUIRED FOR
LEVELING

EXISTING CONCRETE

THREADED BASE DETAIL
NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL X-RAY CONCRETE SLAB TO FIELD VERIFY EXISTING REINFORCEMENT

LOCATIONS PRIOR TO DRILLING. CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE GREAT CARE TO ENSURE AT
LEAST 3" GAP BETWEEN ANCHORS AND EXISTING REINFORCEMENT AND STRESSING
TENDONS.

2. CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE PLACEMENT OF BOLLARD DOES NOT IMPACT VISIBILITY OF
STATION SCREEN.

3. CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE BOLLARD PLACEMENT DOES NOT OBSTRUCT 3' DOOR SWING ON
BOTH SIDES OF MEDIA STATION.

4. BOLLARDS ARE NOT DESIGNED FOR VEHICULAR IMPACT.

FOR REFERENCE ONLY, DESIGNED AND PROVIDED BY OTHERS.

2.894"

4.41"

M3.819"x0.098"

Ø2.953"

0.472"

(2) 5/8" HOLES

(4) HILTI 1/2" DIA. HDI+
STAINLESS STEEL ANCHORS
W/ 2" EMBEDMENT

Ø1.378"

NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE PLACEMENT OF BOLLARD DOES NOT IMPACT VISIBILITY OF

STATION SCREEN.
2. CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE BOLLARD PLACEMENT DOES NOT OBSTRUCT 3' DOOR SWING ON

BOTH SIDES OF MEDIA STATION.
3. BOLLARDS ARE NOT DESIGNED FOR VEHICULAR IMPACT.

EX. GRADE

Ø10"

3'-0"

3'-0" MIN.

3" CLR.

CONCRETE FOOTING

SLOPE TO DRAIN

PIPE SURFACE: UNFINISHED
STAINLESS STEEL

4" 304 SS PIPE

CONCRETE TO BE CURVED

℄

℄

℄

℄
℄

℄

℄

℄

NOT
USED

NOT
USEDNOT

USED

NOT
USED

NOT
USEDNOT

USED



VOLTA V4 EVCS CUT SHEET

CD90s01/21/2021 TAS

N
O

TE
: T

H
E

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

S
IZ

E
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

LA
N

 IS
 2

4"
 X

 3
6"

.  
S

C
A

LE
 R

A
TI

O
 IS

 N
O

T 
V

A
LI

D
 F

O
R

 R
E

D
U

C
E

D
 O

R
 E

N
LA

R
G

E
D

 S
H

E
E

T 
S

IZ
E

S

155 DE HARO STREET
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103

PERMIT

06/11/2021

10 PITKIN ROAD
VERNON, CT 06066

STOP & SHOP #613
VERNON

1 N LEXINGTON AVE, SUITE 505
WHITE PLAINS, NY 10601

Main: 914.368.9200 | www.kimley-horn.com
© 2021 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

1
CD100s03/18/2021 TAS2
CD100 REVISIONS PER VOLTA COMMENTS06/11/2021 TAS3

C3-02

SITE DETAILS

VOLTA BASE PLATE ANCHORAGE

NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY POST INSTALLATION OR CAST IN PLACE ANCHOR AS LISTED BELOW

BASED ON FIELD MEASUREMENTS AND JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS.
2. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB THICKNESS AND MAINTAIN 2" MINIMUM

COVER OF CONCRETE BELOW EMBEDDED ANCHORS.

CAST IN PLACE ANCHOR:
MINIMUM EFFECTIVE EMBEDMENT OF 2" OR ENGINEER APPROVED EQUAL.

POST INSTALLATION MECHANICAL ANCHOR:
(4) 1/2" DIAMETER HILTI KWIK BOLT TZ-SS304 ANCHOR ROD WITH MINIMUM EFFECTIVE EMBEDMENT
OF 3-1/4" OR ENGINEERING APPROVED EQUAL.

CHARGING STATION BASE PLATE PLAN VIEW

CHARGING STATION BASE PLAN VIEW

3.88" 7.5" 3.5" 7.5" .88"

6"

1.84"

23.5"
26.25"

1.38"

2.09"

9.69" 5.5"
.75"

PROPOSED CHARGING
STATION ANCHOR (SEE
NOTE BELOW)

CHARGING STATION BASE PLATE

CHARGING STATION

CONCRETE
FOUNDATION

CHARGING STATION
BASE PLATE

36.5"

84
.9

"

15.5"

38
.5

"

PLAN

CHARGER SPECIFICATIONS:
SIZE: H 85.0" x W 36.5" x D 15.5"
CORD LENGTH: 12.5'
POWER TYPE: 208/240VAC, 40A (MAX), 10 kW MAX.
PLUG: SAE J1772 COMPLIANT CONNECTOR
LISTINGS: UL E354307

POWER REQUIREMENTS:
CHARGING UNIT: 50A/2P 208/240V BREAKER
STATION AUX POWER: 20A/1P 120V BREAKER

FRONT

NOTES:
1. THE GRIP RANGE FOR THE CHARGE CABLE

BEGINS AT 38.5" ABOVE PARKING SURFACE.
2. SEE DETAILS 17 & 19, THIS SHEET FOR

MORE INFORMATION.

SIDE
(2x DISPLAYS)

BACK

33.2"

VOLTA V4 L2 EVCS

FOR REFERENCE ONLY, DESIGNED AND PROVIDED BY OTHERS.

FOR REFERENCE ONLY, DESIGNED AND PROVIDED BY OTHERS.

N.T.S.
SCALE 16

N.T.S.
SCALE 19

VOLTA V4 BASE PLATE

FOR REFERENCE ONLY, DESIGNED AND PROVIDED BY OTHERS.

EBOX DATA CUT SHEETECLICK DATA CUT SHEET EBOX DATA CUT SHEET

FOR REFERENCE ONLY, DESIGNED AND PROVIDED BY OTHERS. FOR REFERENCE ONLY, DESIGNED AND PROVIDED BY OTHERS.

N.T.S.
SCALE 20 N.T.S.

SCALE 21 N.T.S.
SCALE 22

N.T.S.
SCALE 17 N.T.S.

SCALE 18

FOR REFERENCE ONLY, DESIGNED AND PROVIDED BY OTHERS.

NOT
USED

NOTE:
1. DEFER TO DETAIL 18 FOR BASE PLATE ANCHORAGE.



CD90s01/21/2021 TAS

N
O

TE
: T

H
E

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

S
IZ

E
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

LA
N

 IS
 2

4"
 X

 3
6"

.  
S

C
A

LE
 R

A
TI

O
 IS

 N
O

T 
V

A
LI

D
 F

O
R

 R
E

D
U

C
E

D
 O

R
 E

N
LA

R
G

E
D

 S
H

E
E

T 
S

IZ
E

S

155 DE HARO STREET
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103

PERMIT

06/11/2021

10 PITKIN ROAD
VERNON, CT 06066

STOP & SHOP #613
VERNON

1 N LEXINGTON AVE, SUITE 505
WHITE PLAINS, NY 10601

Main: 914.368.9200 | www.kimley-horn.com
© 2021 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

1
CD100s03/18/2021 TAS2
CD100 REVISIONS PER VOLTA COMMENTS06/11/2021 TAS3

2827 29

26

31 32

30

9"
MIN.

NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE NECESSARY PRECAUTIONS WHEN DRILLING INTO EXISTING CIP

SLAB AND CIP DROP PANELS TO AVOID DAMAGE TO ANY REINFORCING AND EXISTING
STRUCTURAL COMPONENTS.

2. USE APPROVED ASTM METHOD (X-RAY, PACOMETER, GPR, ETC.) TO LOCATE MILD STEEL
AND PRE-STRESSING TENDONS PRIOR TO DRILLING. DO NOT CUT OR DRILL THROUGH ANY
EXISTING REINFORCING. ADJUST LOCATION AS NECESSARY TO AVOID EXISTING
REINFORCING.

3. PRIOR TO DRILLING, CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THICKNESS OF EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB
IS AT LEAST 9" AND THAT 6" ANCHOR EMBEDMENT CAN BE PROVIDED.

4. REFER TO CIVIL PLANS FOR BOLLARD LOCATIONS.
5. CONCRETE TO BE 6,000 PSI.

25

34

EVCS FOUNDATION SECTION B-B

POST INSTALLED BOLLARDPOST INSTALLED AT ELEVATED SLAB EVCS

1/4"

NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE NECESSARY PRECAUTIONS WHEN DRILLING INTO EXISTING

CIP SLAB AND CIP DROP PANELS TO AVOID DAMAGE TO ANY REINFORCING AND
EXISTING STRUCTURAL COMPONENTS.

2. USE APPROVED ASTM METHOD (X-RAY, PACOMETER, GPR, ETC.) TO LOCATE MILD
STEEL AND PRE-STRESSING TENDONS PRIOR TO DRILLING. DO NOT CUT OR DRILL
THROUGH ANY EXISTING REINFORCING. ADJUST LOCATION AS NECESSARY TO AVOID
EXISTING REINFORCING.

3. REFER TO CIVIL PLANS FOR CHARGER LOCATION.

C3-03

SITE DETAILS

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

2"CLR

4'-0"

3" CLR.
(TYP.)

4' OR TO MIN.
FROST DEPTH
WHICHEVER IS

GREATER

3" CLR

10"
MIN.

3'-6"

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

#6 BARS @ 6" SPA.
O.C. TOP AND
BOTTOM EA. WAY

INSTALL 1/2" COMPRESSIBLE
JOINT FILLER WHERE
FOUNDATION ABUTS EXISTING
PAVEMENT (TYP.)

BASE PLATE AND ANCHOR
BOLTS PROVIDED BY VOLTA AND
INSTALLED BY GC (TYP.) REF
CUT SHEET FOR ANCHOR BOLT
SIZE AND PATTERN

EXISTING GRADE

4 - 3/4" HILTI-HY200 Z RODS (GALV)
AND HILTI HIT-HY200 ADHESIVE
WITH MIN. 6" EMBEDMENT (SEE
NOTE 3)

PL 3/4"x13"x13" W/1 1/2" EDGE
DISTANCE (TYP.) (HDG)

1/4" NEOPRENE PAD

SEALANT ALL
AROUND

STANDARD VOLTA CHARGING
STATION OR BTC CHARGING
STATION/PCS. BASE PLATE AND
ANCHOR BOLTS PROVIDED BY
VOLTA AND INSTALLED BY GC
(TYP.) REFERENCE CUT SHEET
FOR ANCHOR BOLT SIZE AND
PATTERN

4"Ø GALV. PIPE BOLLARD FILLED
W/ CONC. & PAINTED W/ RUST
PRIMER TO BE VINYL COATED
YELLOW UNLESS OTHERWISE
SPECIFIED BY THE VOLTA
CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
MANAGER

4"Ø GALV. PIPE BOLLARD FILLED W/
CONC. & PAINTED W/ RUST PRIMER
TO BE VINYL COATED YELLOW
UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED BY
THE VOLTA CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
MANAGER

BOLLARD CONNECTION-SLAB MOUNT

NOTE:
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE NECESSARY PRECAUTIONS WHEN DRILLING INTO PT SLAB

AND BEAMS TO AVOID DAMAGE TO PT STRANDS. IF J-HOOKED ANCHOR BOLTS ARE
EMBEDDED OR HAVE RODS THAT ARE EPOXIED INTO SLAB AND/OR CURB FOR
CONNECTION THEN BOTTOM PLATES SHOWN ARE NOT USED.

2. IF LOCATIONS ON PLANS CONFLICT WITH DT STEM OR PT BEAMS, CONTRACTOR TO
CONFIRM A NEW LOCATION WITH THE EOR.

℄

NON-SHRINK GROUT

(4)-5/8"Ø THREADED RODS
GR. 36 MIN. WITH NUT AND
WASHER ON TOP AND BOTTOM

SET PLUMB. SHIM BASE TO
OFFSET FLOOR SLOPES

SLEEVE

ELEVATED PARKING
DECK SLAB

DISFIGURE THREADS
AFTER NUT INSTALLATION
TO PREVENT LOOSENING

1/4" NEOPRENE PAD
 3/4"x10"x10"

TOP & BOTTOM (HDG)

9"
MIN.

4"Ø GALV. PIPE BOLLARD FILLED
W/ CONC. & PAINTED W/ RUST
PRIMER TO BE VINYL COATED
YELLOW UNLESS OTHERWISE
SPECIFIED BY THE VOLTA
CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
MANAGER

NOTES:
1. SEE DETAIL #26 - FOR PARKING LOT INSTALLATIONS.
2. SEE DETAILS #27, #28, & #29 - FOR PARKING GARAGE INSTALLATIONS.

℄

2423 N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

33N.T.S.
SCALENOT USED NOT USED NOT USED NOT USED

NOT USED

NOT
USED

NOT
USED

NOT
USED

NOT
USED

NOT
USED

℄ ℄

NOT
USED

NOT
USED

NOT
USED

AA

MIN. CONCRETE FOUNDATION
SIZE TO ALLOW FREE
ROTATION OF EVCS

CHARGING STATION
FOUNDATION SIZE W/ SHOWN
EVCS ORIENTATION. NO
OPTION TO ROTATE.
SEE "EVCS VARIABLE
FOUNDATIONS" TABLE ON
DETAIL 24, THIS SHEET.

CHARGING STATION
BASE PLATE

CHARGING STATION
FOOTPRINT

5.0' MIN.

2.5'

5.
0'

 M
IN

.

2.
5'

Y
(VARIABLE BASED ON DEPTH)

X
(VARIABLE BASED ON DEPTH)

V4 EVCS FOUNDATION

NOTES:
1. CHARGING STATION FOUNDATION TO EXTEND FROM BACK OF CURB TO BACK OF CURB

WHEN PLACED IN LANDSCAPE ISLAND.
2. SEE DETAIL #24 - FOR PARKING LOT INSTALLATIONS.
3. SEE DETAIL #27 - FOR PARKING GARAGE INSTALLATIONS.

V4 EVCS FOUNDATION SECTION A-A

3" CLR42
" O

R
 M

IN
. F

R
O

ST
D

EP
TH

 W
H

IC
H

EV
ER

IS
 G

R
EA

TE
R 2" CLR

3"
#7 @ 6" O.C. TOP & BOTTOM
EACH WAY (TYP.)

EVCS ANCHORS

CONCRETE FOUNDATION

EXISTING GRADE

CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE
CONCRETE FOUNDATION

AND GRADE ARE FLUSH
EVCS

INSTALL 1/2" COMPRESSIBLE
JOINT FILLER WHERE
FOUNDATION ABUTS EXISTING
PAVEMENT OR CONC. PAD
(TYP.)

MIN. 6" CONC. PAD TO BE
UTILIZED IN RAISED
LANDSCAPE ISLANDS TO
CONNECT FND. TO BACK OF
EX CURB. CONTRACTOR TO
VERIFY PAD IS FLUSH WITH
FND. AND CURB

NOTES:
* ASSUMES 1.5 KSF SOIL BEARING PRESSURES.
* ASSUMES 170 MPH WIND SPEEDS PER ASCE 7-10.
* ASSUMES LENGTH (Y) VARIABLE PERPENDICULAR TO

EVCS FRONT / BROAD FACE.

NOTE:
1. EXISTING GRADE AROUND EVCS'S INSTALLED IN ISLANDS CAN BE GRASS OR FILLED WITH

REINFORCED CONCRETE AT #4 @ 12" O.C. PROVIDE 1/2" COMPRESSIBLE JOINT FILLER AND
POURED SEPARATELY.

2. KHA IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DESIGN OF EQUIPMENT OR ANCHORAGE TO THE
FOUNDATION. MANUFACTURER SHALL SUBMIT LOADS TO ENGINEER OF RECORD FOR
RECORD KEEPING ONLY.

EVCS VARIABLE FOUNDATIONS
DEPTH (D) (FT) LENGTH (Y) (FT) WIDTH (X) (FT)

3.00 3.50 3.50

3.50 3.00 4.50

3.50 2.50 6.50

5'

2.5'

CONCRETE
FOUNDATION

CHARGING STATION
BASE PLATE

CHARGING STATION
FOOTPRINT

4"Ø GALV. PIPE BOLLARD FILLED W/ CONC. AND PAINTED W/ RUST
PRIMER TO BE VINYL COATED YELLOW UNLESS OTHERWISE

SPECIFIED BY THE VOLTA CONSTRUCTION PROJECT MANAGER

B

B

0.
75

'
(T

YP
.)

0.75' (TYP.)

V4 EVCS FOUNDATION W/ 4" PIPE BOL.

5'

2.
5'

 (T
YP

.)

NOT
USED

NOT
USED



E1-00

ELECTRICAL ONE
LINE DIAGRAM &
PANEL SCHEDULE

CD90s01/21/2021 TAS

N
O

TE
: T

H
E

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

S
IZ

E
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

LA
N

 IS
 2

4"
 X

 3
6"

.  
S

C
A

LE
 R

A
TI

O
 IS

 N
O

T 
V

A
LI

D
 F

O
R

 R
E

D
U

C
E

D
 O

R
 E

N
LA

R
G

E
D

 S
H

E
E

T 
S

IZ
E

S

155 DE HARO STREET
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103

PERMIT

06/11/2021

10 PITKIN ROAD
VERNON, CT 06066

STOP & SHOP #613
VERNON

1 N LEXINGTON AVE, SUITE 505
WHITE PLAINS, NY 10601

Main: 914.368.9200 | www.kimley-horn.com
© 2021 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

1
CD100s03/18/2021 TAS2
CD100 REVISIONS PER VOLTA COMMENTS06/11/2021 TAS3



CD90s01/21/2021 TAS

N
O

TE
: T

H
E

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

S
IZ

E
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

LA
N

 IS
 2

4"
 X

 3
6"

.  
S

C
A

LE
 R

A
TI

O
 IS

 N
O

T 
V

A
LI

D
 F

O
R

 R
E

D
U

C
E

D
 O

R
 E

N
LA

R
G

E
D

 S
H

E
E

T 
S

IZ
E

S

155 DE HARO STREET
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103

PERMIT

06/11/2021

10 PITKIN ROAD
VERNON, CT 06066

STOP & SHOP #613
VERNON

1 N LEXINGTON AVE, SUITE 505
WHITE PLAINS, NY 10601

Main: 914.368.9200 | www.kimley-horn.com
© 2021 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

1
CD100s03/18/2021 TAS2
CD100 REVISIONS PER VOLTA COMMENTS06/11/2021 TAS3

E2-00

ELECTRICAL
NOTES & DETAILS

2

6

4BORE SECTION CORE DETAIL

1 7

3

9 10

POWER TRENCH

ROOFTOP CONDUIT SUPPORT

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

N.T.S.
SCALE

BORE PIT

WALL CONDUIT MOUNT STRAP NON-TRAFFIC RATED JUNCTION BOX N.T.S.
SCALE

ELECTRICAL NOTES & ABBREVIATIONS

NOTES:
1. LEAN CONCRETE RED-COLORED TOP, MAY BE USED IN PLACE OF COMPACTED SAND.
2. BURY CONDUITS 36" MINIMUM BELOW FINISHED GRADE.
3. ALL PVC SWEEPS TO BE A MINIMUM 36" SWEEPS.
4. CONDUIT SIZES PER CONDUIT SCHEDULE.

36
" M

IN
. O

R
M

IN
. F

R
O

ST
 D

EP
TH

W
H

IC
H

EV
ER

 IS
 G

R
EA

TE
R

12
" M

IN
. T

O
24

" M
AX

.

4"

4"

12" MIN.
(TYP.)

24
" M

IN
. O

R
M

IN
. F

R
O

ST
 D

EP
TH

W
H

IC
H

EV
ER

 IS
 G

R
EA

TE
R

12" MIN.
(TYP.)

NOTES:
1. A NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED TESTING LABORATORY SHALL LIST ALL EQUIPMENT IN

COMPLIANCE WITH ART110.3.
2. ALL EXTERIOR EQUIPMENT SHALL BE RAIN TIGHT AND APPROVED FOR USE IN WET

CONDITIONS.
3. ALL CONDUCTORS SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH STRAIN RELIEF UPON ENTRY INTO

ENCLOSURES.
4. EACH UNGROUNDED CONDUCTOR SHALL BE IDENTIFIED BY PHASE AND SYSTEM PER ART

210.5.
5. ALL METALLIC COMPONENTS SHALL BE GROUNDED VIA EQUIPMENT GROUNDING

CONDUCTORS.
6. CHARGING UNITS ARE EQUIPPED WITH AN INTEGRATED CONTRACTOR TO PREVENT BACK

FEEDING OF POWER TO THE SOURCE.
7. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY MAIN FEED BREAKER SUPPORTING DISTRIBUTION PANEL IS

APPROPRIATELY SIZED TO SUPPORT THE LOAD. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE
ENGINEERING TEAM IMMEDIATELY IF BREAKER IS FOUND TO BE INSUFFICIENT.

8. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSPECT ALL PRE-WIRED CONNECTIONS WITHIN EACH CHARGING
STATION TO ENSURE THE CONNECTIONS ARE SOLID.  INFORM VOLTA OR THE ENGINEER IF
ANY CONNECTIONS ARE LOOSE OR DAMAGED.

ABBREVIATIONS:
A AMPERE
AC ALTERNATING CURRENT
AL ALUMINUM
ART ARTICLE
AUX AUXILIARY
BLDG BUILDING STRUCTURE
CONC CONCRETE
CU COPPER
DC DIRECT CURRENT
EGC EQUIPMENT GROUNDING CONDUCTOR
(E) EXISTING
EMT ELECTRIC METALLIC TUBING
EV ELECTRIC VEHICLE
EVSE ELECTRIC VEHICLE SUPPLY EQUIPMENT
GALV GALVANIZED
GND GROUND
HDG HOT DIPPED GALVANIZED
I CURRENT
KVA KILOVOLT AMPERE
KW KILOWATT
M METER
MAX MAXIMUM
MIN MINIMUM
N NEUTRAL
NEC NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE
NTS NOT TO SCALE
(N) NEW
OC ON CENTER
PL PROPERTY LINE
PVC POLYVINYL CHLORIDE
RMC RIGID METALLIC CONDUIT
SCH SCHEDULE
SS STAINLESS STEEL
TYP TYPICAL
V VOLT
W WATT
XFMR TRANSFORMER

ELECTRICAL NOTES:
1. ALL ELECTRICAL WORK AND RELATED ACTIVITIES PERFORMED ON-SITE SHALL BE DONE IN

ACCORDANCE WITH NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE (NEC) STANDARDS BEING ENFORCED BY ALL
APPLICABLE JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.

2. UTILITY EQUIPMENT INSTALLATIONS AND PREP WORK SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH THE
APPROPRIATE UTILITY ENGINEER AT TIME OF PRECONSTRUCTION MEETING TO ENSURE
ACCURACY OF INSTALLATIONS.

3. CONDUIT PATHS ARE REPRESENTATIVE ONLY. EXACT CONDUIT PLACEMENT TO BE
DETERMINED ON SITE BASED ON FIELD CONDITIONS.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE NECESSARY PRECAUTIONS WHEN DRILLING INTO EXISTING CIP
SLAB AND CIP DROP PANELS TO AVOID DAMAGE TO ANY REINFORCING AND EXISTING
STRUCTURAL COMPONENTS.

5. USE APPROVED ASTM METHOD (X-RAY, PACOMETER, GPR, ETC.) TO LOCATE MILD STEEL
AND PRE-STRESSING TENDONS PRIOR TO DRILLING. DO NOT CUT OR DRILL THROUGH ANY
EXISTING REINFORCING. ADJUST LOCATION AS NECESSARY TO AVOID EXISTING
REINFORCING.

6. PRIOR TO DRILLING, CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THICKNESS OF EXISTING CONCRETE WALL
IS AT LEAST 9" AND THAT 6" ANCHOR EMBEDMENT CAN BE PROVIDED.

7. REFER TO CIVIL PLANS FOR WALL MOUNT LOCATIONS.

NON-PENETRATING CONDUIT SUPPORT
BLOCK (COOPER B-LINE DURA-BLOCK
DB20 OR APPROVED EQUIVALENT)

ATTACH CONDUIT TO CONDUIT
SUPPORT BLOCK WITH GALVANIZED
CONDUIT STRAPS

3'-0"

3'-0"

EXISTING SURFACE

UNDISTURBED SOIL
PVC SCHE40 CONDUIT
FOR POWER

CONDUIT STRAP

CONTRACTOR SHALL USE APPROPRIATE
BOLTS FOR THE EXTERIOR WALL TYPE

CONDUIT SIZE PER PLANS

TRANSITION FROM PVC TO RMC FOR ANY
EXPOSED CONDUIT AT GRADE TO STUB UP

6" MIN.

NON-SKID SURFACE

GENERAL CONTRACTORS TO
REPLACE EXISTING STOP
SOIL SURFACING MATERIAL
TO MATCH EXISTING

CAUTIONARY TAPE

COMPACTED BACKFILL
WITH SATISFACTORY
NATIVE OR IMPORTED
SOIL TO 95% PROCTOR

UNDISTURBED SOIL

COMPACTED SAND BED
(SEE NOTE 1)

COMMUNICATIONS CONDUIT

EXISTING SURFACE

POWER CONDUIT
COMMUNICATIONS CONDUIT

POWER CONDUIT

BACK FILL PER
APPROVED METHOD

NOTE:
1. EXACT CONDUIT DIAMETERS MAY VARY UPON INSTALLATION. REFERENCE CONDUIT SIZE

PER THE CONDUIT SCHEDULE.

PER PLAN CONDUIT
(N) WATERPROOF SEALANT

STAINLESS STEEL DRAW BAND

4LB. LEAD FLASHING

METAL PITCH PAN

EXISTING ROOF FINISH

(E) CONCRETE DECK

FSP 1000 FIRE-STOPPING
SEALANT (U.L. 1479)

NOTE:
1. EXACT CONDUIT DIAMETERS MAY VARY UPON INSTALLATION. REFERENCE CONDUIT SIZE

PER THE CONDUIT SCHEDULE.

JUNCTION BOX SHALL BE POLYMER
CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION

CONCRETE COLLAR
CLASS A3

LID SHALL BE
TIER 15 RATED

LIFT RING
OR SLOT

GROUNDING
ELECTRODE

OPEN
BOTTOM

COMPACTED SOIL
AROUND SIDES OF BOX

NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE NECESSARY PRECAUTIONS WHEN DRILLING INTO EXISTING CIP

SLAB AND CIP DROP PANELS TO AVOID DAMAGE TO ANY REINFORCING AND EXISTING
STRUCTURAL COMPONENTS.

2. USE APPROVED ASTM METHOD (X-RAY, PACOMETER, GPR, ECT.) TO LOCATED MILD STEEL
AND PRE-STRESSING TENDONS PRIOR TO DRILLING. DO NOT CUT OR DRILL THROUGH ANY
EXISTING REINFORCING. ADJUST LOCATION AS NECESSARY TO AVOID EXISTING
REINFORCING.

3. ALL PENETRATIONS MUST BE LOCATED A MINIMUM OF 18" AWAY FROM THE EDGE OF
CONCRETE. CONTACT EOR IF VARIANCE IS REQUESTED.

4. PENETRATIONS THROUGH WALLS AND FLOORS SHALL COMPLY WITH THE LOCAL AHJ
LATEST BUILDING CODE CHAPTER 7 FIRE AND SMOKE PROTECTION FEATURES SECTIONS
709.6 AND 714.

48" REMOVAL
(12" ON EACH

SIDE OF TRENCH)

24" TRENCH

℄

TOP VIEW

SECTION VIEW

COVER DETAIL

#68, #78, #8 AGGREGATE PLACED
UNDER ENTIRE BOTTOM OF BOX

℄

AA

ELEC
B

A

3"

12"

8"

12"

GROUND
LINE

CONCRETE COLLAR
CLASS A3

PENETRATION DETAIL

CONCRETE WALL PENETRATION

℄

3 1/4" MIN. CONC. WALL OR CMU.
OPENING TO PROVIDE 3/4" MAX.
ANNULAR SPACE AROUND PIPE

4" MAX. DIAM. METAL PIPE

TREMCO THROUGH-PENETRATION
FIRE-STOP SYSTEMS, ICBO #3198

MINERAL WOOL (4 PCF) PACKED INTO
ANNULAR SPACE AND RECESSED 1/2"
FROM WALL SURFACES

8

5CEILING CONDUIT SUPPORT N.T.S.
SCALE

3/8" FULL THREADED ROD

STRUCTURE DECK

SIMPSON STRONG-TIE
THREADED ROD HANGER

OR APPROVED EQUAL

1-5/8" GALVANIZED
STEEL CHANNEL

2" CONDUIT

3/4  MIN.

SINGLE BOLT CONDUIT CLAMP
(TYP. OF ALL CONDUIT)

BTC POLE DISCONNECT SWITCH

FOR REFERENCE ONLY, DESIGNED AND PROVIDED BY OTHERS

11N.T.S.
SCALE

NOT
USED

NOT
USED

NOT
USED

NOT
USED





STAFF COMMENTS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



OFFICE OF THE 
TOWN PLANNER 

GEORGE K. MCGREGOR, AICP 

14 PARK PLACE, VERNON, CT 06066-3291 
Tel:  (860) 870-3640  

E-mail:  gmcgregor@vernon-ct.gov

TOWN OF VERNON

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town of Vernon Planning & Zoning Commission 

FROM: George K. McGregor, AICP 

SUBJECT: PZ-2021-14, Volta Charging, LLC 

DATE: November 4, 2021 

Request 

An Application of Volta Charging, LLC, for a Zoning 
Regulation Text Amendment to permit electric 
charging station/display kiosks in the Commercial 
and Industrial Zoning Districts. The Applicant 
proposes to amend Section 16-Signs, of the Town 
Zoning regulations to permit electric charging 
stations with display kiosks. Typically, the Town 
would view the charging stations as accessory uses, 
permissible by site plan approval. Due to the fact that 
the Volta Charging LLC model includes commercial 
messaging in the manner of electronic display signs, a 
text amendment is necessary. Volta’s charging 
station is free to the public; the signage defrays the 
cost of the free service.  

Volta currently plans to place these electronic 
charging stations at the Shop Right on 10 Pitkin Rd, 
Vernon. A full submission package, including site 
details (note action on the amendment does not 
constitute site plan approval) is included  in the 
agenda packet. 



2 

PZ 2021-14 

Staff Review 

The amendment is necessary as the zoning regulations are silent on new technology such as 
this. Electronic vehicle charging stations advance Vernon’s sustainability effort and support 
our economic development initiatives. 

Draft Motions 

MOVED, the Planning & Zoning Commission APPROVE PZ-2021-14, Electric Charging/Display 
Kiosks, subject to Exhibit C, upon a finding that the amendment is consistent with the Plan of 
Conservation and Development and its efforts to support economic development and 
sustainability initiatives in the community. 

Or 

Alternative Motion 





APPLICATION 

 4 

 









































STAFF COMMENTS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



OFFICE OF THE 
TOWN PLANNER 

14 PARK PLACE, VERNON, CT 06066 
(860) 870-3640 

gmcgregor@vernon-ct.gov 

TOWN OF VERNON

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 

FROM: George K. McGregor, Town Planner 

SUBJECT: PZ-2021-16 369 Talcottville Rd 

DATE: November 4, 2021 

Proposal: 

An Application of Habitat for Humanity North 
Central Connecticut for four (4) Special 
Permits in the Special Development Zone-
Economic Development Zone (Zoning 
regulation Section 4.20.4.4-wholesale 
showroom; 4.20.4.7-professional office; 
4.20.4.10-retail sales of products assembled 
or packaged; 4.20.4.11-general contracting 
establishments) at 369 Talcottville Rd. (Tax 
Map ID: Map 04, Block 0004, Parcel 0006A). 
The permits are needed to establish Tolland 
County operations for the not-for profit. 
Planned at this location is a Habitat Re-Store 
(sale of new and used home goods), as well 
as offices for the services Habitat provides: family services, veterans repair, new construction services, 
and rehab. Habitat will occupy a portion of the former Shepard Supply building. No substantive site work 
is planned. The Applicant has provided a great deal of explanation and detail in its submission packet. 

Relevant Considerations under Zoning 

Due to the extraordinary nature of this community not-for-profit, it does not fit neatly into one 
particular zoning use category. Retail, office, wholesale showroom, general contracting all combine in 
one location so that Habitat may provide community services. Thus, four separate special permits are 
requested to allow the full complement of Habitat services on-site. 



PZ-2021-16   369 Talcottville Rd.     2 
November 4, 2021 

Special Permit Criteria: 

In order to approve a special permit, the Commission must find that the applicant meets the relevant 
general special permit criteria of Section 17.3.1, specifically: 

17.3.1.1 It shall not create a hazardous condition relative to public health and safety; 

17.3.1.2 It shall be compatible with neighboring uses; 

17.3.1.3 It shall not create a nuisance; 

17.3.1.4 It shall not hinder the future sound development of the community; 

17.3.1.5 It shall conform to all applicable sections of this ordinance; 

Other Reviews 

No Town Departments provided substantive referral comment. 

Analysis and Recommendation 

The use is appropriate for this commercial location and meets the special permit standards for each 
permit requested.  

DRAFT MOTION(S) 

A. I move that the Planning and Zoning Commission Approve PZ-2010-16, four special permits
(4.20.4.7-professional office; 4.20.4.10-retail sales of products assembled or packaged;
4.20.4.11-general contracting establishments) to allow a Habitat for Humanity Restore and
Office establishment, upon a finding that the request is consistent with the special permit
requirements of 17.3.

OR 

B. I move an alternate motion


	PZC  Agenda for 11-4-21
	Draft Minutes
	PZC  Draft Minutes 10-21-21
	Application 1
	Application Packet PZ-2021-11
	Staff Comments
	Cannabis Transmittal Staff memo PZC 11-4-21
	CRGOD referral Letter 9-24-21
	Application 2
	Application Packet PZ-2021-12
	Section 4.25.3 with Amendment
	Clerk stamped receipt of doc 10-6-21
	Staff Comments
	PZ 2021-12 Staff Memo to PZC 11-4-21
	CRCOG Zoning referral letter 9-24-21
	Application 3
	9-14-21 Volta Charging LLC - Application to Amend Zoning Regulations with Exhibits A- D Attached - Compressed(4954145.1)
	9-14-21 Volta Charging_ LLC - Application to Amend Zoning Regulations  - Cover Letter
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit A -Application to Amend the Zoning Regulations
	Exhibit B
	Exhibit B - Petition for Zoning
	Exhibit C
	Exhibit C - Proposed Zoning Text Amendments
	Exhibit D
	Exhibit D - Site Plans prepared by Kimley-Horn_ P.C. dated January  21_ 2021_ last  revised June 11_ 2021
	C0-00 COVER SHEET
	C0-01 GENERAL NOTES
	C0-02 VOLTA STATION OVERVIEW
	C1-00 OVERALL SITE PLAN
	C2-00 ENLARGED SITE PLAN
	C3-00 SITE DETAILS
	C3-01 SITE DETAILS
	C3-02 SITE DETAILS
	C3-03 SITE DETAILS
	E1-00 ELECTRICAL ONE LINE DIAGRAM & PANEL SCHEDULE
	E2-00 ELECTRICAL NOTES & DETAILS


	Volta Receipt for Documents
	Staff Comments
	PZ 2021-14 Staff memo 11-4-21
	CRCOG referral letter 9-24-21
	Application 4
	PZ 2021-16 Application
	Staff Comments
	PZ-2021-16 Staff Report



